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Misys Newco 2S8.ar.l.
Managers’ report for the year ended 31 May 2015

Managers' Repart

The board of managers (the “Board") prasent their report and the audied consclidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 May 2015 {("2015")

Development of the business

Misys Newco 2 S ar] (the "Company™) 15 a imite¢ iability company doniciled in Luxembourg The address of
its registered office 15 19, Rue de Bitbourg, L-1273, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

The Company, together with its subsidianes ("Misys® or “the Group™) was formed by the combination of twa
separate acquisitions by Vista Equity Partners in 2012

The Group's principal activiies are the development, management and licensing of a varlety of software
products and sclutions to customers in the financial services industry The Group operates globally, including
partnering with other companies to sell and distnbute Misys products and solutions.

The business continued its operations as a provider of mission cnlical software whose products are deeply
embedded i customers’ operations The financial servicas market continues to evolve with ongoing pressure
on banks to better manage enterprise wide nsk, to introduce new growth areas and to comply with regulatory
raquirements

2015 was a transitional year for the Group, reflectad in the dechne i performance compared with the strong
results of the previous two financial years 2015 parformance was impacted by extended deal cycles in closing
licence deals as well as some weaknesses In sales execution, product delays and investmants made 1n prior
years to improve our salas enablement not dellvering as expected

In the financial year ended 31 May 2015, the Group continued to focus on delivering growth and improving
operating margmns through investing in product development, sales and marketing, and talent. The Group
continues to make organisational changes to wmprove sales execution and further advance its ‘go-to-market’
propositions Further orgamsaticnal changes ware planned and are to be exacuted during the 2016 financial
year The Board continues to believe that the Group will remaln competiive within the markets it operates in,
due to the gquatity, breadth and depih of its products as well as its compettive positioning

On 8 August 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the Issued and outstanding membership interests of Custom
Credii Systems, L.P ("CCS") for a total consideration of $26 6m ($24 Dm net of cash acquired) CCS is a
leading provider of loan origination and credit workflow software CCS has expertise and strong reputation i
commercial lending, making their knowledge and products a cemplement to the Groups FusionBanking
portfolio The Group have integrated CCS's offering nto FusionBanking Loan IQ to creata a fully integrated,
front-to-back office commaercial lending solution across all asset classes More detalls about this acquisttion
can be found in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements

Research and Developmant Actlvity

Duning the year, research and development gross expenditure before capitalisation increased to $122 2m
compared to $121 8m in the prior year largely due to the full year mpact of the acquisiton of IND Group
Hoiding Limited ("IND") and the partial year impact of the acquisiton of CCS offset by foreign exchange
movements The Group continued to benefit from the consolidation of research and development locations,
along with benefithng from lower associated costs relative to the US dollar.

A successful research and development agenda Is a strategic pronty of the Group The markets in which the
Group operates are complex, requinng an effective research and development strategy to support and
maintamn the competiive advantage the Group enjoys The Group remains commitied to the continuous
davelopment of a portfolio of market relevant products This agenda will continue into the next financial year
Cngoing investment in new technology and functionality has, and will continue to, enable the Group to
maintain and strengthen its market leading position
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Duning the year, the Group has invested in a Group-wide Product Strategy function, which is tasked with the
coordination of long term product strategy for ali the markets in which it operates, m order ta identfy, and
accelerate the development of, integration opportunities between products for the benefit of its customers
Integration and componentisation of the Group's solutions, backed up by a leading FusionFabnic technology
platform, benefits customers of multiple of the Group’s products through increased transparency, reduced
implementation costs, more effective decision-making and more efficient operations

The Group has also enhanced the value proposition of its Corporate Lending solution by integrating credit
orlgination and managemant capabllities with its back-office and senvicing capabilities, as well as integrating its
FusionBanking Essence, Equation, and Midas core banking solutions with the new Digital Channels mobile
and online banking capabiities Most recently, the Group has releasad the FusionBanking Fees & Billing
module, allowing customers to buld, test, and roll out sophisticated, cross product and business pncing
strategies, including bundling, discounting, and cther activity or volume based pricing strategies in both
corporate and retail banking settings investments In research and development have been complimented by
nvestments in marketling, in particular with a group-wide rebranding of product Imes to create an improved
offering to market

Key Performance Indicators (“KPis")

The Group's KPI results for the year were as follows

Year ended Year ended

31 May 3t May % Increase/

2015 2014 {decrease)

Revenue ($m) 880 5 9458 (7%}
Inhial Licence Fees {($m} 2054 260.7 (21%)
Adjusted EBITDAC' ($m) 266 7 3237 (8%)
Research and development expenduture2 ($rm) 1222 121.8 0%
Net cash flow generated from operations ($m) 2917 3100 (6%)
Net debt® (3rm) 1,757 2 1,7915 (2%)
Headcount - year end 4,619 4,660 (1%)

'Adjusted Eamings befora Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisailon less the amounts capllahsed In raspact of intemally
develcped softwara and other adjustments See page 5 for a reconcliation af operating profit to this adjusted measure
Excluding discretonary empioyse related costs

* Borrowings, excluding Praferred Equity Cortificates, lass cash ang cash equivalants and restricted cash
Commentary cn the Group’s KPls 1s provided as part of the financial review below
Financial Review

Rasuits

Revenue decreased by 7% from $945 Bm in 2014 to $880 5m in 2015 Revenus decline was largely dus to the
inpact of foreign exchange rates on reported revenues, in particular the strengthening of the US Dollar against
the Euro and Pound Stering during the year On a constant currency basis, revenue dechned by
approxsmately 2% largely due to more prolonged deal cycles as a result of extended customers' Intemal
diligence processes, some weakness i sales execution and product delays

A 21% decline in lnital Licence Fees ("ILF") to $205 4m compared with $260 7m in 2014 was largely due to
execution 155ues, lengthening of deal cycles and the impact of foreign exchange rates The Board considers
ILF to be a KPI baecause 1t 15 3 measure of new busness and dnves future Maintenance fees and, in many
casas, new Professional Services ("PS") revenue On a constant currency basis ILF reduced by $39 7m or
16%
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Maintenance fass decreased marginally from $478 2m to $474 Sm i 2015 due to the impact of fareign
exchange rates On a constant currency basis mamntenance fees mncreased by 5% benefitting from strong (LF
in 2014 and annual price increases n 2015

Adjusted EBITDAC of $296 7m, a decline of 8% from $323 7m in 2014, reflects lower ILF, parfly offset by
lower vaniable employee costs  Adjusted EBITDAG s the key measure of performance used by management,
and also forms part of the financial covenant under the Group’s loan facilites A reconciliation between
Adjusted EBITDAC and cperating profit as per the consoiidated financial statemants ts shown in the next
section of this report

Research and development ("R&D") expanditure increased to $122 2m from $121 8m In 2014, largely due to
the acquisition of IND and CCS offset by the impact of foreign exchange rate movements i the year

The Group has conducted annual imparment reviews on the camrying value of goodwill, based on the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit ("CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated The resuits of
thesa reviews are disclosed in note 6 to these financial statements Cn an aggregated basis, the Group has a
sigmificant surplus on the carrying values of ts CGUs Howaever, on an individual basis an imparment charge
of $60 Om (2014 $nil) has been recorded in 2015 against the camying value of goodwill allocated to the
FusionRisk CGU and 1s included in operating expenses in the consolidatad income statement Performance of
this CGU dunng the year did not meat the expeclations of management, and together with lower than
antictpated forecast revenues and having considered reasonable sensilvities, the Managers have deamaed it
appropnate to record this impairment charge in the consolidated income statement.

The Group reported operating profit of $56 3m compared with $125 2m in 2014 QOperating profit includes non-
recurring charges of $23 5m (2014 $10.5m) cansisting of costs of $1 1m related to the acqulsition and
integration of GCS and IND and restructunng charges of $22 4m The Group announced the restructuring of ils
European sales organisation in November 2014 and this programme was completed by the end of the financial
year at a total cost of $5 3m in May 2015 the Group commenced new cost reduction programmes impactng
its PS, Customer Support and Sales and Marketing functions and recorded a restructuring charge of $11 Om
mainly related to severance costs In addition operating profit Includes net other foreign exchange gans of
$25 7m (2014 loss of $3 6m) which largely consists of realised and untealised foreign exchanga gains on
forward currency contracts used to hedge the Group's forecast cash flow.

The Group incurred net finance costs of $337 3m, an increase of 2% from $331 2m in the prior year This
increase was a result of higher interest on Preferred Equity Certficates ("PECs”) as a result of compounding
Interest. Fiance cosis primanly compnse $144 5m (2014 $144 4m) on bank loans and facilities and non-
cash $174 4m (2014 $167 6m) on PECs

The Group Incurred tax charges of $30 2m (2014 $26 7m) largely due to current taxation charges of $67 8m
(2014 $66 7m) partially offset by deferred tax credits of $37 6m (2014 $40 Om)

Financial position

Mon-current assets of $2,613.5m (2014 $2,854 3m) pnmarly compnse goodwll of $1.6141m (2014
$1,686 3m) and other intangible assets of $918 8m (2014 $1,093 4m) Goodwil of $17 3m and other
intangible assets of $9 8m were recognlsed during 2015 on the acquisition of CCS A further $28 7m (2014
$34 8m) comprises tangble fixed assets, predominantly office furnishings and information technology
equipment

Non-cufrent trade and other receivables of $31 8m (2014 323 3m) comprnises tax credits on qualified research
and development expenditurs, and revenus from customers which contractually cannot be billed within twelve
months of the reporting date.

Current assets of $398 8m (2014 $433 9m) largely comprise billed and unbilled recelvables of §294 Om (2014°
$324.0m) and cash balances of $40 3m (2014 $50 8m)
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Net deferred tax labilitles of $138 8m at 31 May 2015 (2014 $170 0m) primarly relate to the tming
differences on other intangible assets acquired hy way of business combinations

Other habilites comprise trade and other payables of $191 4m (2014 $225 8m) and defarred incoms of
$253 7m {2014 281 7m)

Negt debt

Net debt 1s defined as borrowings excluding PECs, less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash The
Group excludes PECs from nst debt for consistency with the financial covenants under its banking facilibes
Net debt decreased by $34 3m in the year to $1,757 2m compared to $1,791 S5m in 2014, pnmanly as a result
of a 549 Om decreasa in the US Dollar value of the €186 3m term loan under the First Lien credit facility due to
the deprecialion of the Euro against the US Dollar This decrease was parially offset by net cash oultfiows of
$24 8m on acquisition of CCS Note 22 of the consolldated financial statements provides a reconciliahon of the
mavement in net debt

Cash flow

Net cash flow generated from operations in the year was $291 7m compared with $310 0m in 2014 The
dacrease 15 (argely due to the lower operating profit generated in 2015, offset by larger non-cash foreign
exchange gains and a smaller decrease in sccounts receivable and accrued income

The Group pald $72 5m (2014 $53 1m} of corporation tax during the year of which $11 9m (2014 $10.7m)
related to withholding tax levied on payments made to Misys entitiea where the tax could not be recovered
through the local corporate tax regime due either lo underlying tax losses or other restrictions under local tax
law The Group I1s within the scope of corporation tax 1n the jurisdictions it 15 based in and setlles taxes in
those locations to the exient that there ara taxable profits in the country which are not offset by existing tax
losses The main corporate tax paid was $28 5m (2014 $22 4m) in the US where remainung tax losses were
utlised in the year to 31 May 2015

The Group used $69 Sm of cash for investing actwities (2014 $93 2m) largely comprising $34 2m (2014
$31 8m) expenditure incurred on intermally developed software and the net cash outflow of $24 9m in the
acquisttion of CCS

Net cash of $13 1m was used in financing actvities, being the mandatory repayment of the first hen cradit
faciity referred to in Note 18
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Recanciliation between oparating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Below is a reconciliation between operating profit and Adjusted EBITDAC

Year Year
ended anded
31 May 31 May
allfigures I § millons - 2015 2014
Operating profit 58.3 1252
Add back
Non-recurring charges 235 108
Goodwill impairment , 600 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 2102 2009
Depreclation of property, plant and equipment 98 90
Net other foreign exchange (gain} / loss (25.7) 36
Investor's management fees 14 24
(Gain) / loss on embedded denvatives {7.9) 40
Adjusted EBITDA 3276 3556
Less
Capitallsed software developmenl costs 309 319
Adjusted EBITDAC 296.7 3237

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group's wvision of becoming the number one provider of software in the financial services market 1s built on
ensuring customer success, providing ocutstanding support and servicas, Investng n research and
development, building a high performance culture and delivering sustainable financial performance Execulive
management actively manages nsks that impact these strategic imperatives The key nsks and associated
mutigation activities below do not comprise all the risks asscciated wath the Group and they are not set out in
any order of priority Additional nsks not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be tess
matenal, may also have an adverse effect on the business

Changing macro-economic conditions and risks related to accurate sales forecasts

The global financlal services software industry is highly competitive and can be adversely impacted by
changing macro-economic factors like soversign indebtedness, economic slowdowns, governmental budgetary
constraints and pollitical instabillty resulting in change in demand of certan products, inability to service certain
markets and an increase In deal cycles While the impact of these factors on the Group is limited due to a high
recurring revenue base (over 50% of the Group's revenue Is recurring m nature) from & geographically
diversified customer base (over 2,000 custorners in 130 countrres) with no single customer contributing more
than 2% of Group revenues, macro-economic and political changes could adversely impact the Group's
results

Technology investmenls in financial services software are usually significant in valug and the Group has to
compele with vanous global, reglonal and jocal software service providers to win business [n addition, deal
cycles are usually lengthy due to formahsed vendor diligence and procurement processes in the financal
services industry This combmed with changing customer requirements and inconsistent sales execution can
create difficulties in forecasting revenues, particularly the quantum and fiming of new license sales
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The Group manages these nisks by employing sales teams and sales pariners that are compensated based on
performance, geographically based in key markets supported by product specialists where needed The sales
teams are required to develop and maintain healthy sales pipetines to ailow for histoncal deal win rates and
unpredictabiity in the timing of closing deals While sales pipeline forecasts are subject to regular busingss
reviews and adjusted for changes in sales dynamics, forecast assumptions of pipelne ‘conversion rates’ and
‘win rates’ can be impacled by factors hke deal sizes, market conditions, change in customer behawviour,
product matunty and sales performance resulting in increased unpredictability of new license sales
performance

In addition, a substantial partion of the Group's sales activity has historically been completad n the latter part
of the financial year and a shortfall tn revenue can have a significant impact on profitabiity due to the relatively
fixed nafure of the Group’s cost base in the short to medium term

Market predictions and risks related to product delivery

In a globai and rapidly changing market, the Group needs to respond to the changing needs of customers and
regulators by investing in high quality products and solutions that meet their requirements and are delivered on
tme Over time the Group has built a software portfolio thal has grown to become the bhroadest range of
solutions focused on the financlal services Industry

The increased demand for Digital Channels solutions, data analytics, SaaS ("Software as a Service”), nsk
management and reporting tools and the introduction of regulations such as Dodd-Frank and EMIR provides
the Group opportunities to sell new solutions lo existing and new customers This requires the Group to track
and predict global and regional market requirements, trends and changes in regulations and direct lhe R3D
investment tn the nght solutions to ensure maximum return on \nvestment

While the Group continues ta make significant investment in its products, with approximately 16% (2014 15%)
of operational costs in the cufrent year mvested in R&D, it 1s possible that some investments might not deliver
antcipated returns due to changes in market conditions, inherent uncertainttes 1n accurately predicting
requirements for a global market or the falure to deliver quality producls on time

The Group manages the rnisks related to ongotng product investments and product development through
various means Including the use of agile product development methodologias, producl mvestment reviews,
hinng expernenced product managers and business analysts who understand various market requirements and
the use of customer adwvisory boards which bring together key client stakeholders to discuss and validate the
top prionties for Misys product recadmaps Over 45% of the Group's slaff are dedicated to RED and the Group
maintains a strong focus on engineering excsllence, implementing best practice product development
methodologies, tools and processes and independent preduct testing and quality assurance processes
However, the Group could be adversely impacted by unforeseen delays in product development due to
changing requirements, increased complexity and coding or manufactunng errors despite testing prior to
release

The Group also invests in acquinng complementary technology as evidenced by the acquisition of IND and
CCS Acquisitons are inherently nisky requinng strong due difigence, analysis and integration processes to
ensure projected benefits and synergies are realised The Group uses dedicated and experienced leadership
teams with significant experience in corporate development and employs appropriate due diligence processes
when identfying acquisiton targets While the Group has a track record and significant experience of
integrating acquired businesses, it may fail to dentify all shortcomings or liabilties related to acquisitions or fail
to realise all anticipated benefits and synergies

Risks related to project implementations and customer support

To ensure that custemers maximise their return on nvestment, the Group’s products usually need to be
supported by Umely implementations, Inftegration with existing customer systems and after sales support
sarvices In general, system implementations, migrations and integrations ¢an be impacted by unforeseen
challenges in delivenng solulions on time and to budget. These nsks can also have an adverse effect on the
timing of ravenue recognition
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The Group manages these nsks by the use of services siaff and managers with deep domain expertise,
modular, repeatable and predictable project dehvery modesls and project reporting/foracasting processes The
Group uses service delivery centres that are co-located with development teams to continuously refine and
improve implementations However, due to the length and complexily of some implementations and the
ongoing modifications to product code, the Group may face unforeseen Issues with services delivenes that can
have an adverse impact on customer satisfaction and profitability. The Group usually invest in services
capabiites in advance of projected new license sales and an unforeseen dechne in sales performance can
have an adverse impact on services profitability

Customers can choose from standard support or specialised pramlum support packages based on thefr
requirements Many support agreements include service level agreements that the Group needs to comply
with, The Group uses trained customer support staff that has deep domain expertise deployed 1n multipie
locations globally to ensure continucus availability of appropriate support levels The Group also uses a
dedrcated customer suppart porial to monitor suppert quenes However, it is possibie thal the Group may not
comply with support service leve! agreements which could have an adverse impact on customer satisfaction,
profitability and customer retention

Talent management, performance management and employee retention risks

The Group considers its people ta be its most important asset and relias on the continued service of key staff
at vancus levels within the organisation to succeed The Group's talent management systems are used lo
support ongoing dentification, dsvelopment, training and relention of talent and implementation of traiming
programs to ensure staff skills remamn relevant and current Regular benchmarking of compensatien and
benefits across key markets is conducted to ensure salanes remaln competitive

In addition a strong recruitment and talent acquisition process Is in place to ensure high poteniial talent is
introduced to the Group where neaded However, the Group could be advarsely impacted by the loss of key
tatent and it s posstble that such losses, If not managed, can be disruptive to the business

The Group uses performance management systems fo ensure individual and team goals are aligned io
corporale objectives Performance management actions may require workforce restructunng that could ba
potentially disruptive fo the business and could be accompanied by increased resfructurmg costs and
temporary reduction in productivity

Liquidity, debt, financlal control and foreign exchange risks

The Group aims to achleve outstanding financial performance to ensure sustainable availability of capital and
liquidity to allow further investments in pecple, products and services and appropriate management of the
Group's debt and iquidity positien  In addition, the Group carnes a sigmficant amount of debt with associated
Interest, repayment and covenant comphanca abligations This means the Group needs to focus on strong
financial and cash control, budgeting and rellsbility of financial forecasts The Group has a dedicated finance
and treasury team that assists management In operating key financlal controls over budgets, forecasts and
cash flow optimisation Any unforeseen reductions in revenue or increase in costs or liabidites, especially
around seasonal periods of reduced hquidty may have an adverse Impact on the Group's financial
performance and working capital position

The Group has operations in around 50 countres and its customers operate \n over 130 countries around the
world While the Group's financial performance is measured In US Dollar, a significant amount of the Group's
cash flows are denominated In other currencies particularly Euro, Pound Sterhing, Indian Rupas, Philippina
Peso, and Australan Dollar based on where significant business is conducted around the world Any
significant varatons in foreign exchange rates aganst the US Dollar can have an impact on key finanoal
performance mdicators including revenue The Group operates a hedging strategy 1o protecl a significant
portion of anticipated net cash flows in key foreign currencles using forward currency contracts However, long
term varlations in foreign exchangs rates of key currencies could adversely impacl the Group's profitabiity
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Security and intellectual proparty risks

The Group !s a prowider of financial services software and has to ensure appropnate secunty of its Information
Technology {"IT") infrastructure, products and intellectual property The Group invests a great deal of time and
effort in protecting s IT infrastructure and data including any sensitve data held The Group’s hosting and
Saa$ offenngs go through extarnal secunty reviews and product security and vulnerability testing is a part of
the software development lfecycle. The Group's customers are also increasingly demanding that products
contain appropnate secunty measures, even f they are not hosted on the Group's IT infrastructure High
profile secunty breaches at other companies have mcreased over time due to Increasingly sophisticated cyter
attacks A highly sophisticated attack on the Group's infrastructure or products instalied n a customer's
environment could result in the loss of sensttive information or intellectual properly or damage to customers'
business or regulatory obigations and this could have an adverse impact on the Group’s compettiveness and
profitabildy

In addition, the Group’s ongoing development efforts result in the creation of inteliectual property (“IP*) such as
copyrights, trademarks and patents. The Greup also embeds third party software within its product solutions
to customers While patenting and other forms of IP protection are uvhilised to protect the Group's IP i is
possible that these processes may not be sufficient to prevent IP theft and could result in loss of competitve
advantage In addition, the Group may face claims by other companies, including patent trolls, claiming
infringement or other misuse of IP rghts. Responding to such claims, regardless of validity, can te time
consuming and expensive and could requare the Group to cease selling or releasing certain products

Business continuity and disaster recovary risks

Tha Group has over 4,500 employeses 1n around 50 locations, including a significant presence in Asia, Europe
and the Amencas Due to the global nature of the Group's bustness a signricant natural or man-made disaster,
pohtical changes, acts of terrorism, restrictions in travel or the movement of people or capital could have an
Impact on the Group's ability to continue to provide sufficient services to customers or release products on
tme While the Group has resllience built into s aperations with data backups processes, cloud-based
systems and remole working and has successful frack record of managing business confinulty Incidents
across multiple locations, the Group's operations could be impacted by major disasters in key sites or
countries

Legal, regulatory and litigation risks

The Group operates in around 50 locations around the world and 1s subject o various regulations and taws in
each country mcluding health and safety rules, data protection regulations, employment laws, tax regulations
and the UK Bribery Act The Group employs dedicated internal reglonal legal teams sugported by legal
advisors and experienced business staff

The Group's glohal operatons, parhcutarly n emerging economies, increases the nsk of inappropnate
business conduct The Group manages this nisk through a prescribed code of conduct, anonymous whistle-
blower siles, anti-bribery tralning to relevant staff and regular monitonng of customer facing staff and partners
While comphance with all significant laws and regulalions :s monitared by the regional legal teams there
remains a risk that the Group may not be comphant with all applicable laws and regulations n every
junsdiction

In additon, from tme to ime the Group has been subject to btigation clams from former employees,
customers and business partners While the Group has appropnate process to manage and account for known
hitigation (none of which 1s cumrently considered to be matenal to the Group's results and financial positon), any
new and significant kbgation in the future could have an adverse impact on financial performance
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Managers

The Managers of the Company who wera in office during the year and up to the date of signing the
congohdated financial statements are

Donald Park (Appointed 18/03/2015)

Cliver Hamou (Appointed 19/03/2015)

Ewin Montes {Appointed 30/04/2015)

Manest Singh Saroya (Resigned 19/03/2015)

Anna Catherme Grave (Resigned 19/03/2015)

Catherine Koch (Resigned 30/04/2015)

Events after the reporting date

Apart from as disclosed i note 33 to the consclidated finencial siaterments, no significant events have
occurred since the reporting date

Going concern

The Managers have reviewad the Group's forecasts and assumptons relevant n datermining the
appropriataness of the gaing concern basis and, at the tme of approwng these conselidaled financlal
statements, have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have access {o adequate
financlal resources to conhnua in operational existance for the foreseeable future While assessing going
concern assurmption the Managers noted that the Group has complied with covenant terms since their
fnception n May 2012 and beliave that it will continue to comply with covenant terms in the foreseeabte future.
They therafore contmue to adopt the going concern basis of accouniing n preparing the cansolidated financlal
slatements, as further discussed in notes ta the consolidated financial statements

Subsldiary companies

The Group conducts its activitios through subsichary companies across the world A list of principal trading
subsidiaries 1g shown in note 30 to tha consolidated financial statemants

Financial Instruments

The finangdal rlsk managemant objectives and policies of the Group are set out In note 26 1 the consolidated
financial statements

Exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee
The managers cf the Company have decided to apply for exemption from audit by Parent Guarantee for some
of its eligible subsiciarles for the year ended 31 May 2015, as permitted by European Union (“EU") diractive. A

list of subsidianes applying for the audit exemption under parent guarantae Is shown in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements

! 9

Elvin Montes

B Manager
29 07 2015 o
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Audit report

To the Shareholder of
Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l,

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consohidated financial statements of Misys Newco 2 Sar] and its
subsidiaries, which comprise the consohdated statement of financial position as at 31 May 2015, and
Lthe consolhdated statement of income, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes

m equnty and cash flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory mformation

Board of Managers’ responsthility for the conschdated financial statements

The Board of Managers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements 1n accordance wath International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internat control as the Board of Managers determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of ftnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Responsthtlity of the “Réusewn dentrepnses agréé”

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing as adopted for
Luxembourg by the “Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier”, Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financal staiements are free from material misstatement

An audit mvolves performmmg procedures to obtain audit ewidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the judgment of the
“Réviseur d’entrepnses agi1éé” meluding the assessment of the risks of material msstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In malung those risk assessments, the “Réviseur
d’entreprises agréé€” considers miernal control relevant to the entty's preparahon and far
presentation of the financial statements 1n order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 1n the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinien on the effectiveness of the entity’s
mternal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropmatenéss of accounting policies nsed and
the reasonableness of accounting estunates made by the Board of Managers, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements

We beleve that the audit enidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion

" s smbeese o owow - a— . - - e . - P L

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société caopérative, 2 rue Gerhard Mercator, B P 1443, L-1014 Luxembourg
T 1352 4948481, F +352 494848 200, www pwe lu

Cabinet de réuision agréé Expert-comptoble (cutorisation gouvernementale n°10028256)
R C S Luxembourg B 65 477 - TVA LU25482518
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Opinton

In our opimon, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of Misys Newco2 8§ A1l and its subsidianes as at 31 May 2015, and of their performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Manager’s report, which 13 the responsibility of the Board of Managers, 15 consistent with the
consolidated financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Société coopérative Tuxembourg, 29 July 2015
Represented by

/

Phihppe Duren
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Consolidated income statament for the year ended 31 May 2015

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
alt figures in S millions Nole 2015 2014
Revenue . 1 880.5 945 8
Operating expenses 2 (824.2) {820 8)
Operating profit 56.3 1252
Finance costs 3 (338.1) (3327)
Finance income 3 08 15
Net finance costs (337.3) {331.2)
Loss before taxation {281.0) {206 0)
Taxation 4 (30.2 (287)
Loss for the year (311.2) {232.7)
Consolidated statement of comprehenslve income for the year ended 31 May 2015
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in § millions Note 2015 2014
Loss for the year {311.2) (232 7)
Other comprehensive income:
tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Actuarlal gains recogrised 20 06 02
- Tax income { {loss) on tems takan diractly ta oguity 10 (5.8) a9
(52) 11
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchanga difference on the transiation of foreign operations 14.9 {70)
Other comprehensiva income / {loss) for the year (net of tax) 89 {59)
Total comprehensgive loss for the year (302.3) {238.6)
Attributable to-
- Owners of the parent {302.3 {238 8)
The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an mntagral par of these consolidated financal statements
12
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Misys Newco 2 S.a r.l.

Consolidated statement of financlal position as at 31 May 2015

il figures In § millions Note 215 2014
Non=currant assets
Googwill & 1,614.1 1,686.3
Other intangible assets 7 918 8 1,093 4
Property, ptant and equipment 8 287 348
Investments 9 25 28
Deferred tax assets 10 9.8 123
Denvative financial instruments 11 8.2 14
Trade and othsr receivables 12 36 233
2,8613.5 2,854 3
Current assets
Trade and other recelvables 12 3358 3758
Denvative financial instruments 11 185 35
Current tax asset 31 24
Restricted cash 22 09 14
Cash and cash equivalents 22 40.3 508
398.8 4339
‘Total assels ) 3,012.4 3,288 2
Equity and liabilities
Share capital 13 - -
Share premium 13 10.4 104
Other reserves 14 {1,031.2) {728 9)
Total equity {1,020.8) (718 5)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 88 120
Borrowings 16 1,8037 1,846 9
Preferred Equity Certificates 17 1,564.8 1,391 8§
Derjvative financial instruments 11 11 43
Deferred tax habilites 10 144.4 1823
Provisions 1B 40 52
Defarred income 19 1586 14 6
Retirernent benefit obligations 20 67 73
) 3,553.1 3,464 2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 182 6 2138
Denvative financial instruments 11 40 62
Current tax Labilities 523 527
Provisions 18 28 27
Deferred income 19 2381 267 1
479.8B 542 5
Total equity and liabilities 3,012.1 3,288

The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 12 to 58 were approved by the Board of Managers an 29.0% 2415

d signed on its behalf by £ |, Mo“fgs, 1] Nanager

W

anager
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Misys Newco 2 5.ar.d.

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 May 2015

all figures in § mitons

Share
capital

Share Other Total
premlum reserves aquity

Balance at 1 June 2014

10.4 (728.9) (T18.5)

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the yaar

. (3112) (3112
. 8.9 89

Total comprehensive loss for the year

- (302.3) (302.3)

Balance at 31 May 2015

10.4 (1,031.2) (1,020.8)

Balance at 1 Jung 2013

102  (490.1) (479 9)

Loss for the year

- (2327) (2327)

Other comprehensive loss for the ygar - - {5.9) (5 9)
Tolal comprehensive lass for the year ~ - (2386) (238 8)
Other rmovements - 02 (0.2} -

Balance at 31 May 2014

104 (728.9) (7185)

The notes an pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Misys Newco 2S ar.l.
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 May 2015

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
&l figures In § mulions Note 2013 2014
Operating activities
Net cash flow generated from operations 21 2917 3100
Interest paid {145.1) {148.1)
Interest recerved - 01
Nat taxation pald 4 (72.5} {53.1)
Net cash flow from operating activitias 741 108 9
Investing activittes
Acquisition of subaidiary, net of cash acquired 5 {24.9) (41 95)
Expenditure on developed softwara 7 (34 2) 319
Reduction in restricted cash 22 05 10
Purchase of third party software 7 (4.4) (8 8}
Purchase of property, plant and egquipment 8 {6.5) (12.6)
Proceads from sale of investments 9 - 0.5
Proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment 4 - 0.1
Net cash flow used In investing activities {69.5) {922)
Financing activities
Repayment of borrowings 22 {13.1) {19 5)
Proceeds from borrowmings 22 - 2472
Capitalised fees in respect of bank loans 22 - {20 6)
Redemptlon of PECs 17 - {198 8)
Net cash flow {used in}/from finanging activities {13 1) 83
(Decrease)} / Increase In cash and cash equivalents in the year (8.5) 240
Net cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 508 263
Differences on exchangs {20 05
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 40.3 508
The notes on pages 16 to 59 are an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements
15



Misys Newco 2S.Ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The Company 1s a ‘Société & Responsabilité Limitée’, domiciled in Luxembourg The Company's country of
incorporation ts Luxembourg and its registered address 1s 18, Rue de Bitbourg, L -1273 Luxembourg.

Nature of entity operations and principal activities

The Group's prnncipal actvites are the development, management and licensing of a varnety of software
products and solutions to customers In the financial services industry

Basis of preparation

The consclidated financial slatements have bsen prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) and IFRS Interpretations Commuttee (“IFRIC”} interpretations as adopted by the
EU and in accordance with Luxembourg laws and regulations

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain criical accouniing
estimates It also requires management to exercise its Judgement in the procass of applying the Group’s
accounting policies

The presentation of the consolidated income statement has been revised to align with how costs are incurred
and managed by the Group Cost of sales, sales and marketing expenses, and general and administrative
expenses have been condensed into operating expenses and supplemented by note 2 which discloses a
breakdown of certain ine \tems

Going concern

The Group's forecasts and projechions, taking account of reasonable potental vanations in trading
performance, show that the Group s expected to operate within the level of its current financing facllittes for
the foreseeable future In making this assessment, the Group has considered bank covenant compliance and
the ability to operate within those covenants with adequate headroom to fake into account rfsks in future
expected cash flows.

After making enquines, the Managers of the Company have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reasan, they
continue to adopt the going concern basls in praparing the consolidated financial statements

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The followings WRSs and IFRIC Interpretations and amendments have been adopted by the Group but none
had any material impact on the Group results or finanaial position

e |FRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’ and related amendments to 1IAS 27 Separate Financial
Statements,

* IFRS 11, *Joint arrangements’ and related amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures,

« IFRS 12, “‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’,

+ Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 - Investrnent entities,

=  Amendment to IAS 32, ‘Financial instruments Presentation” - Offsetting financial assets and financial
llabiities,

*  Amaendment to IAS 36, ‘Imparrmant of assets’ — Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assels,

« Amendment to IAS 39, ‘Financial instruments Recoghition and measurement’ — Novation of
denvatives and continuation of hedge accounting; and

« |FRIC 21, ‘Levies’.
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Misys Newco 2S.arl.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

New standards, amendments and interpretations not yet effecfive

The following new standards, interpretations, improvements and amendments (o existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s accouniing pencds beginming on or after 1 June 2015 or later
pericds but the Group has not adopted these early

.* IFRS 8 'Financial instruments' {not yet endorsed by the EU);

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (not yet endorsed by the EU),

= Amendment to IFRS 11,"Joint arangements’ on acqusition of an interest in a jont operation’ {not yet
endorsed by the EU},

« IFRS 14,"Regulatory deferral accounts’ (not yet endorsed by the £U),
Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 (effective from 1 Juna 2015),
Improvements ta IFRSs 2011-2013 (effective from 1 Juna 2015),
Amendment to IAS 18 ,'Properly, plant and equipment' on depreciaton and Amendment to IAS
38,'Intangible assets', on amortisation (not yet endorsed by the EU);

« Amendment to IAS 19, 'Defined Benefit Plans’ - Employee Contnbutions (effeclive from 1 June 2015),
and

« Amendment to |IAS 27, 'Separate financlal statements’ {not yet endorsad by the EU).

The Group has undertaken an intial review of the mpact of these new standards, interpretations and
amendments and has concluded that they are unlikely to significantly impact the Group's results or financial
postion

On 28 May 2014, the Internaticnal Accounting Standards Board (“JASB”) issued IFRS 15 'Revenue from
contracts with customers’ The standard Is expected to become effective for the Group’s accounting penod
beginning on 1 June 2018, subjecl to endorsement by the EU The Group 1s in the early stages of analysing
the potential Impact of the standard on its conselidated financial statements This lmpact could be material, in
parhcular in the areas of ailacating revenue to the different performance obligations under one contract and the
fiming of ravenue recognition

A summary of the Group’s accounting policies 1s given below
Accounting convention

The consclidated financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certan items which are measured at fair value, as disclosed in the accounting policies below These
accounting policies have been consistently applied fo all years presented, unless otherwise stated

Basls of consolidation

The Group’s financial statements consohdate the finanoal statements of Misys Newco 2 Sa rl and its
subsidlary undertakings On scquisition, the assets, liabitties and contingent habilities of a subsidiary are
measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition

Subsidiaries are all entities {Including structured enhties) over which the Group has control The Group
controis an entity when the Group ts exposed to, or has nghts to, variable retums from its involvement with tha
entity and has the abiiity to affect those returns through its power over the entity

Subsidiary undertakings acquired dunng the year are included in the financtal statements from the date at
which control passes to the Group Subsidiary undertalungs disposed of are included in the financial
statements up to the date ai which control passes from the Group Accerdingly, the consclidated income
statament, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flow
include the results and cash flows for the perlod of control

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gams and lesses on transactions between Group
companies are ehminated
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.\.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Revenue recogmtion

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration recewved or receivable from sllents for services provided by
the Group, staled net of discounts, retumns and value added taxes Revenus is recognised when a legal nght 1o
consideration exists and can be relfably measured, dalivery to a customer has occurred with no significant
vendor abligalians remaining and where the coliection of the resulting receivable is considered probabls,

Where these circumstances ewst but no invoice to the customer has been raised, under tha terms of the
contracts, revenue 1s recogmised but the corresponding receivable 1s shown as accrued income in the
consoldated statement of financiat pasition

The Group generates revenue as follows

Licence fees,

Maintenance feas,
Professional Services, and
Subscriptions

Revenue Is recogrised In accordance with IAS 18 — ‘Revenue’ In determuining the amount of revenue to be
recognised, management exercise judgemeni, and also adopt estimates in reaching certan conclusions
Management considers guidance from software industry common practice in ferming its estmates

Licence fees

The Group grants is customers licences to use ils software This revenue can relate to (a) ILF, where a fee
relates to the nght to use a software product, including significant upgrades pertaiming to customers
purchasing new modules or user rights, and (b) Roadmap Accelerator (“RA”), wheie a fee 15 payable for a
sigificant variation of an existing product.

Where a licence 1s not subject lo matenal modification or customisation certain criteria must be met before
revenue is recognised

Arrangement existence is evidenced,

Software has passed internal quality checks and i1s deamned generally available,
Dellvary to the customer has occurred,

Risks and rewards of ownership have baen transferred from the Group to the customer,

Revenue, and associated costs, can be measured reliably and are not subject to further adjustment,
and

+ Collaction from the customer 1s deemed probable

In instances where significant vendor obligations exist, revenue recognition is deferred until the oblgation has
been satisfied No revenue Is recognised for multiple delivenes or multiple elemant products f an element
ramalins undelivered and is essental to the functionalidy of the elements already delivered

ILF on heawvily customised software, together with assoclated Professional Services revenua, are treated as a
single deliverable and recognised on a percentage of completion basis over the penod from commencement of
performance to customer acceptance

Maintenance fees

Mamtenance of software 1s often included in licence agreements The pricing is usually based on a percentage
of the ILF, which 1s common practice in the industry The Mantenance fes provides customers with rights to
unspecified product upgrades, enhancements and help desk access dunng a dehned support penod This
revenue Is recognised rateably over the term of the contract

18
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.L
Notes to tha consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 3t May 2015

Professional Services

Revenue Is generaied from training, consulting and implementation sarvices. These services are reflected in
separate contracts to licence contracts and can be elther on a tme and materials or fixed pnce bass A
percentage of complelion approach i1s adopted to account for fixed-price contracts, which s in accordance with
the rules applicable to long-term contract revenue cecogmtion in 1AS 11 — ‘Consiruction Contracts' This
involves a comparison of costs incurred to date with tolal expected cosis of the contract Losses on contracts
are recognised at the point a loss Is foreseen by reference to estimated costs of completion

Subscriptions
In addition to the revenue streams abave, the Group eams other revenuas as follows.

« Hosting revenue 1s generated by way of an additional subscripton fee payabie {0 the Group to provide
a software hosting service Fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract,

= SaaS revenue s generated whereby the customer pays a subscription fee to cover the software,
maintenance and hosting service Fees are racognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
confract, and

« Leasing revenue is generated by way of granting customers hicence access, and providing
maintenance support Fees are recagnised on a straight-hine basis gver the term of the contract

Multiple element arrangements

The Group often enters nto transactions with customers that include multiple elements such as software
lcence, mantenance and professional services revenues The revenues from (hese arrangements are
generally accountad for separately The factors considared in determiming whether the revenue should be
accounted for separately include the nature of the services, the existence of the far value for the separable
elements, the tming of payments and the acceptance cnteria on the realisability of the software licence fee

Revenue from multiple element arrangaments 1s allocated to the different elemenls based on therr fair value
Fair value for professional services i1s determined by market pricing for equivalent performance obhigation sold
saparately or the "cosl plus reascnable margin® methodology when market dala does not exist

When revenue is objectively determined for all undehvered elements with the exception of one delvered
element, the residual method i1s used to allocate revenue io the delivered element. Revenue for delivered
elements 15 recogrnised when the revenue recogmition cnteria descnbed above are met and revenue is free
from any future uncertainties or adjustments attnbutable to the undelivered elements from which a portion of
the fees have been allocated Revenue for any undelivered alements is daferred and recognised when the
product is delivered or over tha period in which the service 13 performed

Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pansion schemes covering the majonty of its employees
The cosis of these psnsion schemes are charged to the consolidafed income statement as incurred In
additton, the Group has a closed funded defined benefit pension scheme in the UK, as well as a number of
other smaller definad benefit arrangemants cutside tha UK

The remaining active members of the closed UK defined benefit scheme now contribule to a defined
contribution section of the scheme and do not accrue further benefits under the defined benefit scheme Full
independent acluanal valuations of the defined benaft scheme are carned out on a regular basis and updated
al each reparting date The assats of the schemes ara held separaiely from those of the Group

Penston scheme assels are measured at fair value Pension schema liabiites are measured using a projected
unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a hugh quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the habihty The pension scheme surplus (to the extent that t 1S recoverable) or deficit 1s
recogrused in full on the consoldated statement of financial posiion Any current or past service cost and
admmisiration expenses are recognised in the consolidated income statement as ars the net mterest on the
schemes” liabilities
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l,
Notes to the consolldated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Actuarial gains and losses arising from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in the statement of comprehensive income as they arlse

Leases

Leases in which substantally all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases Payments made under operating leases such as rentals, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basts over the period of the lease, {alung into account the benefit of any
rent free penod or other incentives

Leasas of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Property, plant and equipment held under flnance leases is
capitalised in the consolidated statement of financial position at the lower of cost or presaent value of the
mismum lease payments and 1s depreciated aver its useful ife The capital elements of future obligations
under feases are includad as habibties in the consclidated statement of financial position

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as lo
achieve a constant rate of return on the remaiming balance of the fiability

Taxation

Taxation comprises the amount chargeable on the profits for the year, together wath deferred taxation
Deferred taxaton is recogmsed, using the labilty method, in respect of all temporary differences arising
between tax basis of assels and liabilites and therr carrying amount in the financiat statemeants

Deferred tax assels are recognised only o the extent that it is probable that thera will be sufficient taxable
profits from which the underying temporary differences can be deducted or where there are deferred tax
liabilities agatnst which the assets can be recovered

Deferred tax Is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expacted ta appiy in the periods in
which the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or the deferred tax llability is setiled based on tax rates and
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reperting date

The carrylng amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to the sxtant that
it 1s no longer probable that sufficient profits will be avalable. Unrecogmised deferred tax assets are
reassassed at each reporting date and are racognised to the extent that  1s probable that future profits will
allow the deferred {ax asset to be recovered

Current and deferred tax ts recognised in the consolldated income statement except when the tax relates to
items charged or credited directly to the statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the tax Is also recognised In the other comprehensive income or directly in equity

Foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of Group entities are measured using the currency of the pnmary
economic environment In which each entity operates known as the functional cumrency The consoclidated
financial statements ara presented i US Dollars as this s considered to be the currency of the pnmary
aconomic environment of the Group

Foreign currency transactions are franslated into the funciional currency of the subsidiary using the exchange
rates prevaling at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured Forelgn exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foraign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement within ‘Operating expenses '

Goodwill and intanglble assets recogmsed on the acquisition of entities whose functiona! currency s not US
doltar 1s treated as an asset of that enfity and transtated at the closing rate
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Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The Group hedges its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks using denvatives and foreign currency
borrowings Details of the accounting policies in respect of these items are given in the denvative financial

instruments sectlon

Translation of Group companies

Financia! statemenis of subsidiaries whose funcliona! currency i1s not the US Dollar are translated nto US
Dollar at the exchange rates prevailing at the and of the reporting period for items in the statement of financial
positon, and at average exchange rates for consolidated income statement items.

All eifects of exchangs rate adjustments are recegnised In the consolidated income statement, with the
exception of exchange rate adjustments of investments m subsidianes arising from

« the translation of foreign subsidiaries’ net assets at the beginning of the year to the exchangs rates at
the end of the reporting period,

» the translation of foreign subsidianes’ statement of comprehensive incoma from average exchange
rates to the exchange rates at the end of the reporting pernod, and

« the translaton of non-current infra-Group balances thal are considered to be an addition to net
investments in subsidiaries

These specific exchange rate adjustments are racognised in other comprahensive iIncome

If the subsidiary undertaking 18 subsequently sold or closed, cumulative gains or losses recogmised in other
comprehensive ncome are recycled to the consotidated Income statement as part of the profit or loss on
disposal If a non-current intra Group balance is seftled or altered to a paint it 1s no longer considered part of
the net investments in a subsidiary undertaking any related foreign exchangs gains or losses which had
previously been recordaed to the statement of other comprehensive income are recycied to the consohdated
mncome statement as part of operating expenses

Business combinations

The Group uses the acquisiicn method of accounting to account for business combinations The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsldiary is the far value of the assets transfarred, the iabilities assumed
and the equity interests issued by the Group The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset
or labiity resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred Identifiable assels acquired and liabiities and contingent liabitles assumed in a business
combination are measured initiatly at their fair values at the acquisition date

On acquisittion, specific intangible assets are dentified and recognised separately from goodwill and then
amortised over theirr astimated useful ives These in¢lude such tems as brand names, customer relationships
and complate technology, to which value 18 first attnbuted at the ime of acquisiion, The cepitalisation of these
assels and related amortisation charges are based on judgements about the value and ecanomic life of such
items These economic lives for intangible assets are estmaled at belween three and fifleen years

The excess of purchase consideration and the fair value of separable assets and habibilies acquired 15
allocated to goodwill and recognised as an intangible asset Goodwill 1s not amortised but is reviewed for
imparment annually and whenever there 1s a potential indicator of impairment Any impairment 15 recogmsed
immediately in the consolidated income statement and 1s not subsequently reversed

On the disposal of a previously acquired subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwill is included in the
determmation of the gain or 'oss on disposal

Transaction costs
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred once any related contingencies have been resolved
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Misys Newco 2 S.A r.l
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Other intangible assets and research and development expanditure

Research expenditure is expensed in the period in which it 1s incurred Expendilure on developed software is
capitalised when the Group 1 able to demonstrate all of the following. the technical feasibility of the resulting
asset, the ability and ntention to complete the development and use or seli it, how the asset will generate
probable future economic benefils, and, the ability to measure rellably the expenditure attnbutable to the asset
dunng its development Capitalised expanditure on Internally developed software 1s amortised over its useful
economic Ife In ine with expected future economic benefits, onca the related software product 1s avaiable for
use

Development costs which do not meet these cnteria are recognised In the consolidated income statement as
mcurred and are not subsequently capitalised,

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique third party
software products controlled by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when the fellowing criteria are
met

It i1s technically feasible to complete the softwara product so that it will be avasdable for uss,
Management intends to complate the software product and use ar sell it,

There |s an ability to use or sell the software product; i

It can be demonstrated how the.software product will genaerate probable future economic benefits,
Adequale technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are availlable, and

= The expenditure attributable to the software product dunng its developrment can be reliably measured

Directly atinbutable costs that are capitalised as parl of the software product include tha software development
employes cosis and an appropnate portion of relevant overneads Other development expenditures that do not
meet these critena are recognised as an expense as incurred Davelopment costs previously recogrised as an
axpense are not recognised as an asset In a subsequent perod

Computer software development cosis recognised as assets are amortised over ther estimated useful lives,
which 1s between three and seven years Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are
recognised as an expense as ingurred

Intangible assets purchased separately, such as software icenses that do not form an integral part of related
hardware, are capitahsed at cost and amortised over their useful economic hves

Intangible assets acquired through a business combination are iniially measured at fair value and amortised
on a syslematic basis that reflects the pattern of benefits expacted aver therr useful economic lives If the
pattern of future benefits cannot be determined reliably, the wmlangible asseis ars amortised on a straight line
basis The amortisation period 1s reviewed annually

Estimated useful hives by major class of assets are as follows

Complete technology 3-7years

Customer relatonstups 4 - 15 years

Other acquired intangibles 2 -15 years

internaily developed software 3-5years

Fhird party softwara 3 -7years , *

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprectatton Cost includes the onginal
purchase pnce of the asset and the cost attdbutable to bnnging the asset to its working condiion for its
intended use Depreciation s calculated on a straight lne basis so as to wnte off the cost, Iess estimated
residual value of each asset, over its expacted useful We
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

The residual values and useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually The
useful hves by major class of asset applied from the date of purchase are

Buldings 20 - 30 years
Leasehold improvemenls 5 - 15 years or the penod of the lease if sharter
Computer and other equipment 4 - 15years

Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impalrment whenever avents or
changes in circumstancas indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable and annually in the fourth

quarter

Gaoodwll and developed sofiware not yet brought into use are reviewed for imparment annually For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grauped at the lowest levels for which goodwill is allocated and
goodwill I1s allocated to each of the Group’s cash-genarating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocaled are tested for impairment annually,
or mare frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be imparred If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit Is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impawment loss 1s allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any gocdwlll aliccated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit Pricr impalrments of assets (other than goodwiil) are
reviewad for possible reversal annually

An impairment loss 1s recogrised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 118 recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the tigher of an asset’s far value less costs to sell and its valus in use

Any gain or loss ansing on derecognitian of the asset 18 ncluded in the consolidated incoms siatement in the
year the asset 1s derecognised

Financial assets

Financial assels are classified in the following categones ‘at farr value through profit or loss®, ‘loans and
recaivables’, and *available for sale’.

-

‘Financial assets at far valua through profit or loss’ ara financial assefs held for frading or where designated
as such an onginal recogmition Denvatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedges Gains and losses ansing from changes in farr value of ‘financial assels al far value
through profit or loss’ are Included in the consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently held at fair value

+

‘Loans and receivables’ are non-denvative financial asseis with fixed or determinable payments thal ara not
gquoted n an active market and are carried at amortised cost

‘Avaliable for sale’ financiai assels are measured at far value Unreahsed gains and losses are recognised in
equity except for impalrment losses, interest and dividends arising from those assets which are recognised in
the consolidated income statement

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents inciude cash held at bank and in hand together with short-lerm highly hquid

investments with an original maturity of less than three months that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant change [n value
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Restricted cash

Restncled cash is disclosed separately on the face of the consclidated statement of financial pesiton and
denoted as restricted when 1t 1s net under the exclusive control of the Group

Trade and other receivables

Trade recervables are recognised Initially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Where there is objective ewidence that there 18 an impairment loss, the amount of loss is measured as the
differance between the camying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash fiows discounted at
the effective interest rate The amount of loss is recognised In the consohidated incomea stalement within
cperating expense The carrying amount of a recavable is reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irecovarable amounts through the use of an allowance account for trade recesvebles. Amounts charged to the
altowance account are wrtien off when there 1s no expeciation of further recovery Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previousty writien off are credited against operating expenses in the consolidated income statement

Invastments

Equity investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss' Gains and losses ansing from changes n
fair value are included in the consolidated income statement in the penod n which they anse.

Financial liabilities and equity Instruments

Financial labillies and equity instrumenis are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into  An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of ils habtites

Trade payahles

Trade payahles are recognised inthially at fairr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

Provisions

Provisions are recoghised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obhgation as a result of past
events and it 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhigation and this amount 1s
capable of being reliably estimated. If such an abligation 18 not capable of being reliably estimated, no
provision 1s recogrised and the tem 18 disclosed as a contingent hability where matarial

Qnerous property contracts

Provision for cnerous jease commitments on property contracts Is made when a property I1s no longer used by
the Group and 1s based on an estimate of the net unavoidable lease and other payments in respect of these
properties including dilepidalion costs These comprise rental and other property costs payable, plus any
termmation costs, less any incoma expected to be denved from the properties being sublet The provisions ars
discounted at an appropriate rata to take into account the effect of the ime value of money

Borrowings

Borrowings censist of lerm loans, overdrafts and other short term facilities, and are initally recognised at fair
value less directly attnbutable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effectlve interest rate method The difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the
redempfifon value is recognised in the consolidated income stalement, within finance costs, over the period of
the borrowings Borrowings ara classified as current liabllities unless the Group has an uncondrional aght to
defer settiement of the lfabihty for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Preferred Equity Certificates

The Group has additional financing in the form of PECs ssued to the mmediate parent company Misys Newco
S ar| The PECs are repayabla in cash within a period of up to 49 years from inception and have a contractual
requirement to accrue and pay interest and accordingly have been classified as a habiity.

Derivativa financial instruments

Denvative financial instruments are inittaliy recognised at fair value on the date a denvative Is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at farr value The method of recognising the resulling gain or loss dapends cn
whether the denvative 15 designated as a hedging tnstrument and, if so, the nature of the tem being hedged
Changes In the fair value of derivative financial instruments, where they are not designated as hedaing
instruments, are recogrised in the consolidated income statement because the requirements that permit
hedge accounting in certain circumstances were not satisfied.

Certain forecast non-US Dollar cash flows of the Group in key curréncies are hedged with forward currency
contracts. Hedge accountmg is not applied and the gains and losses are fecordad m the consolidated income
statementi in operating expenses

Centain financlal assets and labiliies, which are denominated in currencies other than those of the functional
currencies of the entities concerned, may also be hedged using forward currency contracts. Galns and losses
on these contracts are recorded in operating expenses togsther with offsetling gains and losses on the
underlying items

Embedded derivatives \
Certain long-term software licensing contracts are prnced in currencies which are not the functional currencies
of the entities entering mto the conlracts or are not common contracting currencies n the lecation in which the
transaction takes place Such contracts are consldered to contain an embedded foreign currency denvative
which must be extracted from the host contract and measured separately al each reporing dale Gans or
losses on these denvatives are charged or credited to the consolidated income stafement The contracts are
generally of up to 10 years’ duration and this 1s therefore the penod over which the assets and habilties
racognised in the consolidated statement of financial position ara expected to crystalise

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equily Incrementat costs direclly atinbutable to the ssue of new ordinary
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of 1ax, from proceeds

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and the grants will be recewead The effact of grants, which include Incentives
structured as R&D tax credits, 1s to reduce the value of the asset of expense

Government grants whose pnmary condition s that the Group should purchasse, construct or otherwlse acquire
non-current assets are disclosed as a liabilty n the conschdated statemeni of financial posihon and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the refated assets

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In making estimates and assumptions, actual outcomes could differ from thase assumptions and estimates
The cntlcal judgements that have been made In arnving at the amounts recognised in the Group’s financial

statements and the key sources of estmation uncertalnty that have a significant risk of causing a matenal
adjstment to the carrying values of assets and liabities within the next financial year 1s discussed balow
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Rovenie recognition

The recogniicn of ILF revenue 1 dependent upon fair value aliocaton, separabity of components,
collectability and there being no significant vendor obligations outstanding Management exercises judgement
in assesstng whether such obhgations are sigmificant and, If necessary, the value of the revenue to be
deferred Such revenus is recognised on sigming only for products which are Judged to be in a state fit for
general avallabity and ready 1o be shipped, to contain all planned components and to have completed quality
testing.

The revenue and profit of fixed price Professional Services contracts i1s recognised on a percenlage of
completion basis when the ouicome of a contract can be estmaled reliably Management exercises
Judgement in identifying onerous service contracts and determining whether a contract’s ouicome can bse
estimated relrably Management also makes estimates In the calculzation of future contrect costs, farr values of
contracts, the valus of discounts given, the valua of upgrade clauses in contracts which are used in
determining the value of amounts recoverable on contracts and timing of ravenue recogniton  Estmates are
continually revised based on changes in the facts relating to sach contract

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and other intanguble assets are reviewed annually for impairment  An impairment review requires an
estmate to be made of the “value in use’ or the ‘fair value less costs to sell’ as appropnate The value in use
calculation includes estimates about the future financlal perfarmance of the cash generating units, inciuding
management's estimales of long-term operating margins and long-term growth rates In the current perlod,
management has assessed the recoverable amount of the cash generating units basad on therr values in use
and no impairments have ansen A reasonably possible change in the assumphions used however could resuit
in imparment and consequently a sensitivity analysis has besn disclosed in note 6

Capitafisation of development costs
Expenditura on developed software ts capitalised when the Group 1s able to demonstrate all of the following
the technical feasbility of the resulting asset, the ability and intention to complete the development and use or
sell it, how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits, and the ability to measure reliably the
axpenditure aitrbutable to the assel during its developrment Management astimates the future sales and long-
term operating margins of the asset

Onercus property contracts

Property provisions require an estimate to be made of the net present value of the future costs of vacant and
sublet properies The calculalton includes estimates of future cost involved, including management’s
estimates of the long term latting potential of the properties :

Taxation

Tax authorties continue to increase their requirements on the maintenance of a good tax control framework on
which to base the mulliple tax fings the Group Is required to make to numerous authonties globally
Management use this documented process o review key judgement nsk areas to determine the financial
statement {mpact from these fillngs Tax authorlties are also exammning more closely how low taxable profits
are matched to business activities conducted in different junsdictions

Thase sstimates and judgements are regularly reassessed and changes in the expecied financial statement
impact accounted for in the period In which the reassessment is made,

Prowvision for the imparment of frade recesvables and accrued income

Provision for the imparment of trade receivables and accrued mcome requires an esumate for the
recoverability of the cutstanding receivables and accrued income keaping in view various implementation
challanges, disputes with customer, customers experiencing financiat difficulty and recewvables which have
bgeome significantly aged Management's estimates include reascnable resolution of these matters along with
customer financial standing to ensure that the trade recsivable will be collected
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Misys Newco 2S.ar.l.
Notas to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Pensions .
The present valus of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an

actuarial basis using a number of assumptions The assumptions used in determmng the net cost (tncome) for
pension include the discount rate Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of |
pension obligatrons |

Raesearch and development lax credits |
The Group has filed claims for research and development tax credits and management’s estimate of the

recoverable amount relles upon procedures in place to support the assessment and documented procasses
and controls to support these claims.
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1. Revenue

Revenue by activity 18 as follows

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in § millons 2015 2014
Inital licence fees 205.4 2607
Mainfenance feas 474.5 478 2
Professional Services 164 4 169 7
Subsenplon 362 372
880 5 2458
The Group i1s exempt from IFRS 8 - ‘Operating Segments* and accordingly Is not required to present
segmantal information
2 Operating expenses
Operating expenses are compnsed of tha following
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figuras in $ millons Nota 2015 2014
Non-recurnng charges 235 105
Goodwill impairment 6 600 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets 7 2102 2009
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8 9.3 90
Capitalizsed soflware development costls 7 (34.2) {31 9)
Capitaitsed software development cosis written off 7 33 -
investor's management fees 25 14 24
Realised trading foreign exchanga loss / {(gam) {12) 14
Net other foresgn exchange (gain) / loss 11.6 (4 2)
{Gain) / loss on forward currency contracts 11 (37.3) 78
(Gain) / loss on embedded denvatives 1" (7-9) 40
Employee costs (see below) 363.2 3974
Other operating expenses (seea below) 221.8 2233
824.2 820.8

Non-recurnng charges consists of acquisihion and integration costs of $1 1m (2014 $1.1m) and restructunng

refated charges of $22 4m (2014 $9 4m)
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Employea costs compnise of.

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

2l Agures In § millions 2015 2014

Wages, salaries and benefits including redundancy costs 3077 3400

Sqrial secunty costs 388 407
Pension costs

Defined contnibutlon plans 158 153

Defined bensfit plans b9 14

36312 397 4

Remuneration of Managers and key management personnsl 1s disclosed in note 25 The average monthly

numbsr of people employed by the Group dunng the year was 4,635 (2014 4,412)

Other operating expenses Inciude '

( Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

_all figuros I § millions 2015 2014
Sales commissions and sales related bonus 29.1 358
Third party royalty fees 17.2 157
Agency fees 41 44
Subcontractor costs 375 292
Direct sales costs 17 Q2
Marketing expenses 9.9 73
Travel expenses 318 337
People related expenses 63 84
Qccupancy costs 32,7 326
Information systems costs 309 324
Lagal and professional costs 14 107
Other cosls 92 13 2
2218 2233

During the year, the Group obtained the foltowing services from the Company's auditors and i{s associates

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all fiquros In § miillens 2015 2014

Fees payable to Company’s auditors and its assoclates for the audit of the 07 07
consolidated financial staternents

Fees payable to Company's auditors and its assoclates for the audit of the 08 11

Company's subsidianes

14 18

Tax services 0.7 08

Other non-audit services - 02

2.2 28

29




Misys Newco 2S.ar.l,

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

3. Net finance costs

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures in $ millicns Note 2015 2014
Interest expense
- Borrowings 16 (144 5) (144 4)
- PECs 17 (174.4) (167 6)
- Accration of discount on provisions 18 {0.2) (09)
Amortisation cf financing facility costs 16 (16 8) {18.2)
Net financing charge relating to pensions {0.2) (0 6)
Fair value losses on invesiments 9 (03) (01)
Other finance costs {1.7) {0 9)
Finance costs (338.1) (332 7)
Interest received on cash and cash equivalents - 01
Accretion of discount on frade receivables 0.8 14
Financea income 08 15
Net finance costs (337.3) {3312)
4 Taxation
Taxaton on ordinary activities
Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all fgures in $ millions Note 2015 2014
Current taxation
Corporation tax on losses for the year {50 2) {53 0)
Adjustments in respect of pnor year (55) (33)
lrrecoverable withholding taxes {(12.1) {10.4)
Current taxation {67 8) (66 7)
Deferred taxation 10 37.6 400
Tax expensg (30.2) {26 7)
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The difference between actueal tax mcome computed using a weighted averaga rate and the tax computed on
the Group’s loss can be explainad as follows

Year Year
endad ended
. 31 May 31 May
all figures m $ milons 2015 214
Loss before taxation {281.0) (206.0)
Tax credit on loss on ordinary actwties at the weighted average rate of 19.4%
(2014 18.8%) 54.6 387
Tax effects of
Permanent differences (14 5) 16
Interest expense not deductible for tax purposes (247) (25 2)
Remeasurement of deferred tex due changes In tax rates 0.2 M3
Temporary differences for which no defetred tax assst recognised (32 5) {37 4)
Pnor year adjustments for current tax {55) (33)
Pricr year adjustments for deferrad tax 43 (20)
Irrecoverable withholding tax {12.1) {10 4)
Tax charge (30.2) {26.7)

The weighted average tax rate Is calculated using the underlying statutory tax rates in the localion where the
profits anse Deferred tax movements are descrnibed in note 10

A tax charge of $5 8m (2014 credit of $0 9m) related to currancy transiation differences has been recognised
In reserves

5. Business combinations

Acquisition of CCS

On 8 August 2014 the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued and outstanding membership interests of CCS for a
total consideration of $26 6m ($24 9m, net of cash acquired) CCS 1s 2 software business based in the US
which provides a loan origination product for the banking sector

The value of the assets and liabllites acquired in the purchase of CCS and the associated far value
adjustments related to those assets are as follows

Provistonal Prowvisional
farr value falr value at
all fguras in § mullions Book value adjustrnents 8 August 2014
Intangible assets - 98 98
Properly, plant and equipment 02 - 02
Cash and cash aquivalents 17 - 17
Trade and other receivables 18 - 18
Accrued income - 01 01
Trade and other payables (02) - {02)
Accruals (0.5) - {05)
Deferred income (12) {2 4} {3 6)
Nut assets acquired : 1.8 1.5 9.3
Goodwill 173
Cash consideration 268
K|
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An analysis of enterpnse value of CCS is as shown below

8 August
a!l figures in $ milions 2014
Consideration paid in cash 266
Cash acquired (1.7)
Enterprise value of CCS 246

The assels and llabilitles and the amounts aliocated to them are prowvisional and are subject to adjustment

durmg the year ending 31 May 201€ f new information is obtained about the facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisiion date

Goodwill ansing on the acqusition of CCS s pnncipally atinbutabte to future profits frorn new customers in new
markets and regions, through cross selhing cpportunities and the assembled workforce. Costs associated with
the acquisiion of CCS of $1 Om are included In operating expsnses in the consolidated income statement.

Revenua and profit of CCS ware not material to the Group’s financial performance in 2015 The revenue and
profit that CCS would have contributed had it been consoldated from 1 June 2014 would not have been
material to the Group

Acqulsition of IND
On 8 February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the 1ssued share capital of IND for a2 total consideration of
€32.9m (344 5m). IND 1s a front end system developer focused on the banking sector

Fair value Fair value at
all figures in § milllons Book value adlustiments 8 February 2014
Intangible assels - 173 173
Property, plant and equipmeni 10 - 10
Deferred tax assets (iiabiitias) 05 {3 3) (2 8)
Cash and cash equivalents 30 - 3.0
Trade and other receivables az - 32
Accrued incoms 11 02 1.3
Borrowings (2 8) - (28)
Accruals (15) - (15)
Deferred incoma {(19) {13) (32)
Other liabilitles {3 0). - {30)
Net assets acquired {0.4) 12.9 12.5
Goodwill 32.0
Cash consideration 44.5
An analysis of enterpnise value of IND 15 as shown below

8 February

2l fiqures in $ millions 2014
Consideration pawd in cash 44 5
Cash acquired {30)
Borrowings discharged as part of acquisition
Enterprise value of IND 44.3

External debt of IND was settled by the Group as part of the acqussition No subsequent fair value adjustments
have been made smece acquisitien Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of IND Is princlpally atinbutable to future
profits from new customers in new markets and reglons, thraugh cross selling opportunities and future profits
from new banking technologles strengthened by adding molwle banking lechnologies and the assembled
workforce. Revenue and profit of IND were not matenal to the Group’s financial performance in 2014. The
revenue and profit that IND would have contnbuted to tha 2014 ysar had it been consolidated from 1 June
2013 were not malenal.
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6. Goodwill

3t May 31 May
all figures In $ miflons 2015 2014
Cost and net book value at 1 June 1,686 3 1,648 0
Differences on exchange (29 5) 63
Acquisition of IND {note 5) - 320
Acquisition of CCS (note 5) 17.3 -
Impairrment charge {80 0) -
Cost and net book valua at 31 May 1,614 1,686.3

Gooadwill impairment tasting

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated for the purposes of imparrment testing to
cash-generating units ("CGUs") The Group conducts annual impairment testing on the carrying value of
goodwiil, which 13 based on tha recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwifl has been allocated

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined by way of value in use ("VIU®} calculations The
determination of whether or not goodwili has been imparred requiras an estimate to be made of the ViU of the
CGU to which goodwill has been allacated

The VIU calculations use pre-tax cash flows of each CGU, based on the approved budget for the year ending
31 May 2016 and medium term plans for the following three years which are consis{ent with the recent
financial performance of the relevant CGU A growth rate of 3 8% (2014 4.5%) was usad based on current
and expected future performance for year five Thereafter, a long term growth rate of 2% (2014 2%) has bsen
used

Change n CGUs

Management identified CGUs as part of an inltial impairment review conducted as at 31 May 2013 There has
been a series of events which concluded in 2015 which have changed the way the Group opetates This
includes

Rebranding of product base,

Evolution of product base - includes new products and suites of products,
Full integration of the Turaz and Sophis businesses, and

Acquisition and infegration of IND and CCS

As a resull of the above, a re-assessment of CGUs for impawrment review purposes was considered necessary
for the year ended 31 May 2015 1o better reflect the construst of the business, the results of which are below

All figures In $ millions Reallocation

31 May 2014 -

CGUs Opening _ IND Turaz Scphis_ Closing 1 June 2014 CGUs

Capital Markets 350.7 - 245.5 840 680.2 MisysFusionCapitsl

Sophis 2014 - - (84 0) 117 4 MisysFusioninvast

Cora Banking 3g18 320 - - 4238 MisysFusionBankingCore

Corporate

Lending 155 4 - - - 1654 MisysFusionBankinglending

Enterprisa Risk 710 - 190 - 800 MisysFusionRisk

Transaction

Banking 1890 - s - 2195 MisysFusionBankingTransaclions
1,359 3 320 2050 - 1,686 3

Turaz 2950 - (285 0) ~ -

IND 320 (32 0) - - -

Total goodwlil 1,686 3 - - - 1,686.3
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Upon initial recogmition goodwill was allocated 1o each CGU based on the expectad performance of the CGU
The reallocation of goodwill as set out above reflects the changes in how the Group operates and manages its

product base

The table below shows the allocalion of the carrying value of goodwiil as at the reporting period by CGU

2015:
all fires In § millions
FusianCapital 655 4
Fusioninvest 1174
FusionBankingCore 4191
FusionRisk 30.0
lfusmnBankmgTransactlon 2195
FusionBanking Lending 1727
Total 1,614.1
2014;
2l figuras in $ milllens
Capital Markets (excluding Sophis) 350 7
Sophts 2014
Core Banking 3918
Corporate Lending 1554
Enterprise Risk 710
Transaction Banking 1890
Turaz 2850
IND 320
Total 1,886 3
Key assumptions

The key assumptions in the VIU calculations are discount rate applied, operating margin and the long-term
growth rate of net operating cash flows

Discount rate

Discount rates used ara pre-tax and reflect specific risks ralating to the relevant CGU or group of CGUs The
discount rates applied to CGUs were as follows

2015

Pre-tax
cGuU discount rate
MisysFusionCapital 15 8%
MisysFusionlnvast 13 9%
MisysFuzionBankingCore 15 0%
MisysFusionBankinglending 15 0%
MisysFusionRlsk 16 7%
MisysFusionBankingTransactions 14 9%
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2014,

Pre-tax
cGU discount rate
Capital Markets 14 9%
Sophis 13 2%
Turaz 13 0%
Core Banking 14.0%
Corporate Lending 14 1%
Enterprise Risk 14 1%
Transaction Banking 15 6%
Qpegrating margin

Management determined budgeted operating margin based on prior performance and expectation of market
development The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry
reports

Long-term growth rate

Long-term growth rates of net operating cash flows are assumed equal to the long-term growth rate in the
gross domaestic product of the country in which the CGU’s operations are undertaken, and were 2% (2014
2%) for perods beyond the first five years

Summary of resulls
The imparrment reviews indicated significant headroom on an aggregated basis in companson to the total
carrying value of the comblned CGUs

For the MisysFusionRisk CGU the recoverable amount was less than its carrying value and an impaument
charge of $60 Om (2014. $nil} has been recognised against the carrying value of its goodwill The main driver
for the impairment was ths revenua and operating margin detericration n 2015 expenenced n this product
group, and tha lawer revenue outlook for the forecast period

No impairment charges were identified for any of the other CGUs
Sensitivity to changes 1n assumptions

As pert of the VIU testing the Managers consider the impact that a range of scenarios could have on the key
assumptions within the VIU calculation

Driscount rate

The Group bases its estimate for the long-term pre-iax discount rate on its weighted average cost of capital
{“WACC”) using long-term markst data and \ndustry data to derive the appropriate inputs to the calcuiation
The Managers consider that a 1 5% change in the absclute discount rate Is the maximum change that should
be considered as reasonably possible as this represents a 11% to 12% increase in the WACC

Operating margin

The Managers consider that a reduction of 5% In the absolute value of long-term operating margins across all
CGUs would be the imrit of what could be considered to be reasonably possible on the basis that the Group’s
cost base s floxible and could quickly respend to market changes The Group s spread across a range of
geographies and a large recurring maintenance revenue stream which help lo Insulats 1t from mors significant
changes

Long-term growth rate

The Group uses a long-term growth rate that 1s the same as the long-term growth rate of gross domestic
product (GDP) of the tarritorias in which the CGU |5 based Given these are ‘ong-term rates, the Direclors
consider a change of 1% in the absolute value of the long-term growth rate to be the fimit of what is reasonably
pessible
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Summary of sensilivily analysis

Sensivity analyses have been performed around the base case assumplions with the conclusion that no
reasonably possible changes In key assumptions would cause the recoverable amount to be less than the

carrying amount in any CGL, other than MisysFusioninvest

In MisysFusionlnvesi, the recoverable amount based on value in use exceeded the carrying value of the net
assals by $48 4m A decline in annual short term revenue growth of 22 4%, a fall in long term growth rate by
3 9% or a nse in pre-tax discount rate by 3 2% would remova the remaming headroom.

7 Other intangible assets

Other Total
Complete  Customer acgured acquired Developed Third party
all figures in $ milions technology relationships intangibles intanglbles  software  software  Total
Cost
At 1 June 2014 7005 5477 157 6 1,405.4 701 184 11,4943
Differences on exchange {(20) (21} {02) (4.3) (61) (23) {(12.7)
On acquisition of CCS . _
(note 5) 64 24 1.0 g8 9.8
Additions - - - - 342 44 38.6
Written off - - - - (3 3) - {3.3)
At 31 May 2015 7049 548.0 158.4 14113 94.9 205 1,526.7
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 June 2014 (266 6) (97 7) (210) (385.3} (8 0) (7.6) (400 9)
Differences on exchange 05 0.1 - 0.6 13 13 32
Amortisation charges
(note 2) {134 4} (46.4) {11.1) {191,9) 15.1) {(32)  (210.2)
At 31 May 2015 {400.5) {144.0) {32.1)  {576.6) 21.8) {9.5) (607.9)
Net book value
At 31 May 2015 304.4 404.0 126.3 8347 73.1 11,0 918.8
Other Total
Complete  Customer acqured acquired Developed Third party

all fiqures In $ millons technology relatonships intangibles intangibles  software®  software  Tofal
Cost
At 1 June 2013 690 3 541.14 156 6 1,388 ¢ 373 90 1,4343
Differences on exchange 01 04 - 05 09 06 2.0
On acquisition of IND 10 1 62 10 173 . . 173
{note 5)
Additions - - - - 31.9 88 407
At 31 May 2014 700 5 547 7 1576 1,405 70.1 184 14943
Accumulated amartsation
AL 1 Jung 2013 (134 3) {49 2} (104 (193 9) (22) (37) (1908)
Differences on exchange 01 - - 01 (0 1) (02) (02)
&'g&“‘z‘"’f""” charges (132 4) (485  (106) (1915) 57) (37) (2009)
At 31 May 2014 {266 6) (97.7) _  (210) (385 3) (8.0} (7.6) _ (400 9)
Net book vatue
Al 31 May 2014 4339 450.0 1366 1,020¢ 62 1 108 1,093 4,
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Complete technology, customer relatienships and other acqurred intangbles had a weighted average
remaining life of 32 months (2014 43 months), 112 months (2014. 124 months) and 143 months (2014 155
months) respeactively at 31 May 2015

There was no impairment of other intangible assets in 2015 (2014- $nil)

8. Property, plant and equipment

Buildingand Computer
leasshold  and other

ol figures in § millions ) improvements aquipment Total

Cost

At 1 June 2014 237 29.9 538

Differances on exchange @an 27) (4.4)
On acquisition of CCS (note 5) - 02 0.2

Additions 08 57 6.5

Disposals {16) (17 (3.3}
At 31 May 2015 21.2 314 526

Accumutated depreciation

At 1 June 2014 (6 4) {12 4) (18 8)
Differences on exchange 05 09 14

Dapreciation charges {note 2) (29) (6 9) (9.8)
Disposals 18 17 33

At 3t May 2015 {7.2) (16 7) (23.9)
Net book value at 31 May 2015 14 0 14.7 287

Buldingand  Computer
leasehold and other

all fiqures In § millons improvements  equipment Total
Cost
At 1 June 2013 186 205 39.1
Differences an exchange 02 09 1.1
On acquisition of IND (note 5) (1Y) 04 10
Additions 44 88 13.0
Dispcsals (0.1) {0 5) {0 6)
At 31 May 2014 23.7 209 536
Accumulated depreciation
At 1.Juns 2013 {32 (59) 81
Differences cn exchange ()] (08) {07)
Depreciabion charges (note 2) (3.1} (59) {90}
At 31 May 2014 (6 4) {12 4) (18 8)
Net book valua at 31 May 2014 17.3 175 348
ar




Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

9. [nvestments

31 May 31 May
all figures 1n $ milions 2015 2014
Qpening balance 238 37
Cifferences on exchange - 03
Disposal - (0 8)
Reclassification to Trade and other recevables - {0.6)
Fair value movements {0.3) (0.1
Closing balance ) 2.5 28

The Group's investments compnse investments in US and European Technology Funds and marketable
secunties, which are classified as “fair value through profit or loss”, Fair value gains and losses are recognised
within finance costs The investments are denominated in US Dollar and Euro and 1s non-inlerast beanng

10. Deferred taxation

Goodwill and
Other acquired
deductible Intangibles
temporary deferred tax
all figures in § mitlons Losses _ differences liabllity Total
At 1 June 2014 138 (4.6) {179 2) (170 0)
Credited (charged) to the conseolidated income
statement (note 4) (42) 29 387 374
Impact of change in tax rates taken to the
consolidated ncome statement {note 4) - 02 - 02
Credit related to components of other
comprehensive Income - (58) - (58)
Diferences on exchange - 01) (0 5) (08
At 31 May 2015 9.6 7.4) (141.0} {138.8
Goodwill and
Other acquired
deductible intangibles
temporary deferred tax
all fiqures in § milkans LOSS85 differences hability Totat
AL 1 June 2013 200 (4.1) (224.8) (208 9)
On acquisition of IND (note 5) - . {2 8) (2 8)
Credited (charged) to the oonsollt}ated income (1) (10) 371 290
statement (note 4)
Impact of change In tax rates taken to the
consclidated income statement (note 4} - (0 3) 113 110
Credi related to components of other
comprehensive Income - 09 - 08
Differences on exchange 09 {0.1) - 08
At 31 May 2014 138 (4.8) {179 2) {170 0)
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Certain deferred tax assets and llabiltles have been offset The following 1s an analysis of the deferred tax
balances (after offset)

31 May N 31 May
Al figuras In § milons 2015 2014
Goodwiil Goodwill
Other and Other and
temporary acquired temporary acquirad
Losses ditferences intangibles Total Losses differences mtangibles Total
Deferred tax assets 0.6 - - X 44 790 - 123
Deferred tax liabilihes - {7.4) 141.0) (148.4 94 {12 5) (179 2) {182 3}
As shown above 9.6 {7.4) 141.0) (138.8 13 8 {4 6) {179.2) (170.0)

Deferred tax assels are recogmised to the extent that 1t is probable that there will be sufficient future profits in
the respective tax jurlsdiction to ulilise the assets In total, deferred tax assets of §9 6m (2014 $12 3m) have
been recognised These include $9 6m (2014 34 4m) of tax lossas and $nil (2014 $7 9m) of other temporary
differences

Included within the deferred tax habiity of $148 4m (2014 $182 3m) is $141 Om (2014 $179 2m) ansing from
acquired intangibles and goodwill This represents the net future tax habihties ansing from the underlying
goodwill and acquired intangibles Deferred tax liabilities of $31 Om {2014 $36 7m)} will reverse within one
yaar

Deferred tax 18 measured at the substantively enacted tax rates n force af the reporting date'for each country
that the Group operates In As such, the deferred tax balance 15 subject to change as global tax rules and
rates change On 8 July 2015 the UK government announced its intention to reduce the UK corporation tax
rate to 19% in 2017 and 18% In 2020, the effect of these changes will be a reduction in the deferred tax hability
of $2 2m in 2017 and $0 6m in 2020, these adjustments will go to the consolidated income statement

The Group has a number of tax assets that are not recogmsed as their utilisatton 15 not deemed {0 be probable
due to insufficient future profits expecied to anse In country or because the {ax losses can only be offsat
against cerain types of income aor gans which are not expecled to occur The components of the
unrecognised assets, stated gross, are UK capital [osses of $328 7m (2094 $359 8m), Luxembourg corporate
tax losses $357 7Tm (2014 $443 7m), UK corporate tax losses and other tax deductions not recognised of
$402 8m (2014; $511 2m} and corporate tax losses In other Junsdictions of $26 1m {2014 $87 6m)

The total of these when multiplied by the respective country tax rate glves an unrecognised deferred tax asset
of $254 7m (2014* $320 8m)

11 Derivative financial instruments

All denvative financial Instruments are measured at their fair valus and are calculated by reference to the net

present value of future cash flows, based on exchange rates and Interest rates quoted on intemational
financial markets, at the reporting date Sea note 26 for additional disclosure

31 May 31 May
2015 2014

all figuros in § milions Assets Liabilities Assets Liabifilies
Forward forelgn currency contracts 208 40) 36 59
Embedded derivatives 59 (1.1} 13 (4.6)
28.7 (5.1) 49 {10 5)

Analysed as follows:
Current 18.5 £.0) 35 (6 2)
Non-current 8.2 (1.1) 14 {43)
26.7 {5.1) 49 (10 6}
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Forward currency contracts used to economically hedge cash flow risks

The aggregate notional amounts of the outstanding forward foreign currency contracts at 31 May 2015 were
$353 9m (2014 $453 3m) The notional amount of outstanding contracts at 31 May 2015 compnse $152 2m
(2014 $274 4m) in Euro, $93 0m (2014 $83 1m} in Pound Sterling, $46 1m (2014 $42 7m) in Indian Rupes,
$457m (2014 $39 7m)in Philippine Peso, $16 9m (2014 $13 3m) In Australian Dollar and other currencies

Selected expacted future non-US Dollar key currency cash flows of the Group are hedged with forward
currency contracts Hedge accounting 1s not applied as the techrucal requirements of 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments’ are not met Gamns and losses are recorded in the consoldated income statement within
operating axpenses

Dunng the year a $37 3m gain (2014 $7 8m loss)} was recogrised through operating expenses in the
consolidated Income statement in relation to forward currency contracts.

Embedded derivatives

Certain fong-term software ficensing contracts are priced in currencies which are nof the functional currencles
of the entities entenng nta the contracts, or are nol common contracting currencies in the location n which the
transaction takes place Such contracts are considered to contain an embedded foreign currency denvative
which must be extracted fram the host contract and measured separately at each reporting dale except whera
the currency of the contract i1s recognised as a common means of sxchange In the couniry concerned Galns
or losses on these derivatives are charged or credited to the consclidated income statement The contracts are
genarally of up to 10 years’ duration and this 1s therefore the pericd over which the assets and llabilties
recogmsad in the consolidated statement of financial position are expected to crystallise

During the year a $79m gain (2014: $4 Om loss) was rocognised through operating expenses m the
consolidated income statement in relation to embedded dernvatives

12 Trade and ather receivablas

31 May 31 May
afl fiqures in § mitions 2015 2014
Trade receivables 208.4 2432
Less- provision for impairrment of lrade recelvables (5.5) (51
Net trade recevables 2029 238.1
Research and development credits 1.7 28
Qther taxation and social security 3.6 113
Deposits 57 47
Qther receivables 87 68
Prepayments 206 26.2
Accrued income 926 859
Current trade and other recevables 3358 3758
Research and development credits 166 156
Deposits 1.1 13
Prepayments 11 -
Accrued income 128 64
Non-current trade and other receivables 316 233
Tolal rade and other raceivables 3674 399 1

The provision for impared trade recewvables relates to recsivables from customers in financial difficulty,
customar accaptance Issues and cancelled contracts
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The accrued income balance Is stated net of a prowision of $8 3m (31 May 2014 $6 2m) for items where future
bilings have become uncertain due to specific circumstances with identified customers

As at 31 May 2015, trade receivables of $96 6m (2014 $111.9m) wera past dus but not impaired These relate
to a number of customers for whom there is no recent history of default and where commercial discussions
lead managemeant ta conclude that it remains likely that the customer will pay without concesslons from the
Group

The ageing analysis of net trade receivables fs as follows

31 May 31 May

alk figures In $ miliions 2015 2014
0-30 days 1008 1211
30-60 days 240 336
60-90 days 13.7 46 2
90-120 days 153 132
120-180 days 332 170
Over 180 days* 159 70
. ’ 2029 2381

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of each class of recevable
mentoned above

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows

all figures in $ milhans 2015 2014
Opening balance (51) (11.79)
Provision for impairment of recelvables (78) (40)
Receivabies wntten off during the year as uncollectible 3.0 64
Unused amounts reversed 3.8 49
Differences on exchange 086 {07)
At 31 May (55) (51)

13 Share capital and share premium

Allotted, fully pard Share Sharg
shara capital capifal premium
Numbor of Sharas £ mithions 3 miitions
At 1 June 2014 and 31 May 2015 20,650 - 104

The authorised share capital at 31 May 2015 consisted of 20,550 ordinary shares with a nommal value of §1
each (2014 20,550 ordinary shares with a nominal valus of $1 each)

On 4 May 2012, a non-cash contribution of $2 0m was mada to the share prerrium of the Group as a result of
the transfer of the Turaz investment {o the Group On 30 May 2012, Misys Newco S & 1| made additonal cash
coninbution of $6 Om towards the share premium of the Group ©On 28 February 2013, Misys Newco S arl

contributed to the share premium of the Group in the aggregate amount of $2 2m compnsed of 215,045,835
Inceme Participating Preferred Equity Certificates ('IPPECs') with nominat value of $0 01 sach
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14 Other reservas

Retained Translation

all figures In § mililons earnings reserve Total
At 31 May 2013 (458.8) (31.3) {490.1)
Total comprehensive expensa for the year (232 7) (61) (238 8)
Actuanal gains . 02 - o2
Other movement {0 2) - {0 2)
At 31 May 2014 (691.5) {37.4) {728.9)
Total comprehensive expense for the year {311.2) 83 (302 9)
Actuanal gains 08B - 06
At 31 May 2015 {1,002.1 {29.1) (1,0312)
15, Trade and other payables

31 May 31 May
all figuzes in S milfons 2018 2014
Trade payables 83 99
Other taxation and soctal secunty 235 290
Other payables B4 14
Accrued expenses 142 4 1736
Current trade and other payables 182 8 2138
Nan-current accrued expenses %] . 120
Total lrade and other payables 191 4 2258
Accrued expenses comprise

31 May 31 May
Al figures In § milllons 2015 2014
Third party royaities and agency fees 17.4 123
Staff refated costs {induding sales commissions and bonuses) 55.5 96 1
Interest expensa 46.6 46 B
Rent expense 13.0 173
Other operaling costs 18.7 13,2
Tolal accrued oxpenses 151.2 1855
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16. Borrowings

Borrowings consists of two mamn categones of external debt, being term loans which are governed by specific
agreements between the Group and a consoriium of lenders as identified in the following breakdown, and
overdrafts and other short term faciities which were not drawn down at 31 May 2015 (2014 nil)

Term loans

31 May 31 May
alt figurks In $ milions 2015 2014
Term loans 1238 134
Capitalised arrangement fees {12 8) {13 4)
Borrowings — current - -
Term loans 1,857.5% 1,919.3
Capitahsed arrangement feas {53.8) (72.4)
Borrowings — non-current 1,803.7 1,846 ¢
Total term loans 1,803.7 1,846 9
Capitalised arrangement fees reclassified to other recafvables (5.3) {32)
Bank loans (Note 22) 1,798.4 1,843.7

At 31 May 2015 the Group had the following secured term [oans

First Lien credit agreement

s A $1,040 5m {2014 $1,051 2m}term loan, maturing on 12 December 2018 The term loan carries interest
at London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") + 4% (May 2014 LIBOR + 4%) Pnncipal repayments of
$2 7m are made every three months,

=« A €186 3m (2014 €188 2m) term loan, matuning on 12 December 2018 The term loan caires interest at
LIBOR + 4.25% (May 2014 LIBOR + 4 25%} Principal repayments of €0 5m are made every three
months, and

+ A $100m (2014 $100m) Revolving Credit Facility ("RCF"), maturing on 12 June 2017 The credit faciity
was unutilised at 31 May 2015 (May 2014 unutilised} although the Group drew on the facility at various
times duning the year Repayments of ail drawn amounts are mada within three months of drawdown and
are avallable for redrawing until matunty

Second Llen credit agreement

v A $626m (2014 $625m) term loan maturing on 12 June 2019 The term loan was fully drawn on 31 May
2015 and 31 May 2014 and carries interast at 12 0% (May 2014. 12 0%) No principal repayments ara dus
during the term of the loan

No amendments have been madse to the cradit agreements in tha year endad 31 May 2015 On 16 August
2013, the terms of the First Lien credit agreement were renegotialed There was a net increase in the pnncipal
amount of $39 1m and more favourable pricing of interest rates. As a consequence $4 1m of capiiaiised
arrangement fees were written off On 25 November 2013, there was a further net increase n the principal
amount of the First Lien credit agreement of $208 1m,the proceeds of which was used to redeem Series A
PECs

The Group is subject ta certain finance covenants under the credit agreements These specify a maximum
ratio of net borrowings to operating profit, before depreciation, amortisation and excepticnal or non-recurring
items, deducting capitahsed research and development costs. These covenants hava not been braached
during tha year Substantially all of the assets of the Group are pledged as securlty under the credit
agraeements
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No additional fees were capitalised during the year ended 31 May 2015 The unamortisaed amounts remaining
in the consolidated statemant of financial pasition at 31 May 2015 amounted to $71 8m of which $5 3m related
to the current porhon which was reclassified to other raceivables as it exceeded the current portion of loans
{May 2014- $89 Om, of which $3 2m was reclassifled) Amorbsation expense for the year of $16 8m (2014.
$18 2m of which $4 1m was accelerated due toc amendments refemred to above) 1s Included in finance costs in
the consolidated income statement

The far values are based on Future expected cash flows associated with borrowings are shown tn note 28
Overdrafts and other short term facilttios

The Group currently has access to two short term uncommitted borrowing faciliies provided by commercial
banks The facililes have a tolal availability of $48 Om and may be drawn as short-term loans or utlised as
overdraft faciities on releted bank accounts At 31 May 2015 no amounts were drawn aganst the facilities
(May 2014 $ml) Borrowlngs under the facilities are secured by participation in the securily arrangements of
the First Len credil agreement

17. Preferred Equity Certificates

In May 2012, the Group issued $1,257 1m as a senes of PECs, each with a par value of $1, 1o its immediate
parent company, Misys Newco S a ri The PECs have a term of 49 years from the date of 1ssuance {effective
date) but may be retired earlier at any fime by the Group or upon liquidation of the Company. The effective
date, interest rate and outstanding balances for each PEC series are as follows:

all figures In § milllons

PEC Effective 31 May 31 May
Serles Date interest 2015 2014
A 4-May-12 12.50%, compounded monthly 272 240
B 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 290 258
cC 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 156 6 1390
D 4-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 2418 2147
E 30-May-12 12 50%, compounded annually 1,097.7 975.6
F 30-May-12 0.00% 50 50
G 4-May-12 0 00% 75 75
Tota! PECs 1,564.8 1,391 6

Interest of $174 4m accrued during the year (2014 $167 6m), offset against a related party receivable from
Vista Equily Partners of $1 2m resulbng 0 $173 2m capitalised to the PEC balance on 21 May 2015 The
Group redeemed $198 8m of the Senes A PECs in November 2013
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18. Provisions

all Agures n $ milllons Property Other Total
At 1 June 2014 7.4 0.8 79
Charged !/ (credited) to consolidated income statement
- Additional provisions 27 - 27
- Release of unused amounts {02) {02) {0.4)
Accretion of discount 02 - 0.2
Utiisation of provisions (20) 02) (22)
Differences on exchange (13) (01 {1.4)
At 31 May 2015 8.5 03 6.8
Analysis of total prowvision’
Current 25 03 2.8
Non-current 40 - 4.0
65 0.3 8.8
all figires in § millions Property Cther _ Total
At 1 June 2013 11 39 150
Charged / (credited) to consolidated income statement
- Addittonal provisions 12 02 14
- Release of unused amounts (3 8) (11 (4 9)
Accretion of discount 09 - 09
Utillsation of provisions (24) (03) 27)
Reclassified {o Deferred income - (21) {21)
Differences on exchangs 01 02 03
Al 31 May 2014 71 08 79
Analysis of total provision:
Current 19 0.8 27
Non-current 52 - 52
71 08 79
Property provisions

The property provisions compnse the net present value of the estimated future costs of vacant, sublet and
occupted properties of the Group afier taking into account dilapidation obligations in the lease The prowision
relating to vacant and sublet properties is expected to be utitised on average over the next five years Duning
the year, the discount rate applicable to all new property provisions was betwsen 1 9% and 2 75% Provisions
released duning the year relate to dilapidation prowistons which are na lenger required as those properties have

been surrendered

Other provisions

Other provisions relate to obligations following the acquisition of third party software.
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19 Deferred income

31 May 31 May
all figures In § millions _ 2015 2014
Currant
Mamtenance fees 2200 2338
Other revenue 181 333
238.1 267.1
Non-current
Maintenance fees T i 33 64
Other revenus L I 1213 82
Total deferred iIncome ] 156 146

Deferred maintenance fees represent amounts invoiced in advance for contracts which provide techmgal
support and trouble-shooting assistance in addition to upgrades and enhancemants to the Group's software
products and hardware maintenance Maintenance fess are recognised as revenue ratably as the services are
provided over the period of the contract

Olher revenue represents amounts Invoiced primanty m raspect of ILF for software products end Professional
Services for which the revenue recogmition critena have yet to be satisfled

20 Retirement benefit obligations
Defined contributiont schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contnbuion pension schemes covering the maijority of its employees
The cost of these pension schemes was $15 8m (2014 $15 3m) and was charged to the consolidated incomea
statement as Incurred and included within employee cosls. There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions
at either the beginning or the end of the financial year

Definad benefit schemes
The Group operates various defined benefit schemes across the world The most significant scheme 1s in the

UK and the disclosures in this note relate to that scheme In terms of the nen-UK schemes, these are
summansed below

31 May 31 May
all figures In 8 millions 2015 2014
Philppines funded scheme
Scheme assels 4.7 ‘48
Scheme liabiiities (6 2) {6 2)
Net lability {15) (14)
Unfunded schemes
United Arab Emirates (23) (20)
India (1.8) | (1N
Indonesia (0.7) (0 8)
USA (0.4) {0.8)
Total pension habiihes for non-UK schemes {6.7) (6 5)
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UK Retirement Benefits Plan

in 2003/04 the active members of the Misys UK final salary retirement bensfits plan {the “Plan™) ceased lo
accrue benefits on the basis of therr final salary dunng the year Thereafter the bensfits of the active members
accrue on a money purchase (defined contnbution) basis

The Plan 1s a funded, defined beneft, final salary pension plan The level of benefits provided depends on
members' length of service and thelr salary at their date of leaving the Flan Pensions In payment receive
different levels of increases, some fixed {at 0%, 3% and 3 5% per annum} and some receiving inflationary
increases In ine with the increase in the Ratall Pnces Index (“RPI”) (subject to certain caps and floors) The
benefit payments are from trustee-administered funds The amounts of contributions to be paid are decided
Jointly by the employer and the Trustees of the Plan Assets held in trust are governed by UK regulations and
practice The Plan's investment sirategy is decided by the Trustees, In consultation with the employer The
board of Trustees must be composed of reprasentatives of the employer and plan participants in accordance
with the Plan's legal documentation.

The latest full actuanal valuation of the Plan was camred out as at 31 May 2014, the assumptions of which
have been updated to 31 May 2015 by qualified independent actuaries

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financtal position are delermined as follows.

31 May 31 May
_alifigures in S millions 2015 2014
Present value of funded obligations (838) {86 2)
Fair value of plan assets 91.1 854
Surplus / {deficit) of funded plans 7.3 (0 8)
Present valuse of unfunded obligations - -
Total surplus / {deficit) of defined benefit pension plans 7.3 {0 8)
Unrecognised asset due to imit in IAS 19 ‘Employee benefits' paragraph 64 {7 3) -
Liability In consolidated statement of financial position - (0.8)
The year-end assets and liabilities in the Plan were,
Of which
not quoted
on active
8l figqures n § millons Total market %
investment funds 56.2 36.5 61 7%
Buy-in contract 33.6 336 36.9%
Cash and other 13 13 1.4%
Total market value of assetls g1.1 1.4 100.0%
Actuartal value of liabilities (83.8)
» Surplus in the Plan 7.3
Unrecognised asseat due to imit in IAS 18 'Employes benefits’ (73)
paragraph 64
Net pension liabllity at 31 May 2015 -
The Plan does not invast in the Group’s own transferable financial instruments
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Of which
not quoted
on active
8l fgures in S milions Tolal market Y%
Investrnent funds 636 45 62 8%
Buy-in contract 313 M3 3B 7%
Cash and other 05 05 & 5%
Total markst value of assets 854 66 3 100 0%
Acluaral value of labildies {86 2)
Deficit in the Plan (08)
Unrecognised asset due to imit in IAS 19 'Employee -
benehts' paragraph 64
Nat pension liability at 31 May 2014 {0 8)

Tha Trustee of the Plan bought a bulk annuity polcy from. Legal & General Assurance (Penswons
Management) biruted 1in respect of the Plan's pensioners and their dependents as at 14 August 2012 An

estimate of the value of the buy-in contract is included in the asset value
The market value of assets is considered to be matenally the same as the fair value

Movement in the Plan assets and obligaticns during the year.

Fair value
Present value of plan
_aN figures In § millons of ohligation assets Total
At 1 June 2014 (86 2) 854 (0 8)
Interest (expense) / income {33) 33 -
(89 5) 887 (0.8)
Remeasurements
Return on plan on assats excluding amounts Included in inderest
expense - 167 167
Gain from change in demographic assumptions (05) - (D.5)
Gain from change in financial assumplions (92) - (92)
Experence losses 14 - 14
83) 67 8.4
Exchange differences 77 (8 0) {03)
Payments from plans
Benefit payments 63 {8 3) -
At 31 May 2015 {83.8) 81.1 7.3

The actuanial gamn recogrised in the Group's other comprehensive income 1s $0 6m (2014 $0 2m} which 1s
comprised of a gain from the UK scheme of $0 8m offset by an actual loss in the non-UK schemes of $0 2m

Penslon cosis of $16 Tm (2014 $16 7m) were recogmsed in the Group's consoldated mcome statement in

operating expenses for both defined contribution and defined benefit plans
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Movement in the Plan assets and obligations dunng the prior year

Prasent Farr valuo
value of of plan
alt igures In $ millions obhgation assets Total
At 1 June 2013 (74 5} 748 03
Administration costs (03) - @3)
Interest (exgense} / income (36) 36 - -
(78.4) 784 -

Remeasurements
Return on ptan on assets excluding amounts included in terest
expanse - 24 24
Gain from change in financlal assumptions (3 4) - 34
Experiance losses 02 - 02

(32) 24 (0 8)
Exchange differences (7 8) 78 -
Payments from plans’
Benefit payments 29 (29) -
Administration costs 0.3 (0.3) -
At 31 May 2014 (86 2) 854 (0 8)
The pnncipal assumptions used in the valuations of the Plan are

2015 2014

- % %
Inflation (RPI} 34 36
Inflation (CPI1} 24 26
Rate of increase in pensions in payment
Fixed 3% 30 30
Fixed 3 5% 35 a5
RPI max 5% min 3% 7 33
RPil max 5% min 3 5% 39 40
Post 1988 Guaranteed mimimurn pension 21 22
Discount rate for plan liabilikas 34 42

Assumphions regarding future mortality are set based on actuanal advice In accordance with published
statistcs and expenence These assumphons translate Intc an average Ife expeclancy in years for a

pensionar retiring at age 60

2015 2014

Years Years

Lifa expactancy for male currently aged 60 29.2 288

Life expectancy for a famale currently aged 60 303 299

Life expectancy for male currently aged 40 30.6 308

Life expactancy for a female curtently aged 40 27 319
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The sensitivity of the defined banefit obligation lo changes in the principal assumplions is:

Change in assumption [mpact on defined

benefit obligation

($rmiltions)

Discount rate -01% (0.8)
RPI inflation +0 1% (0.2)
Demographic changs 1 year Increase in ife expectancy {1.8)

The above sensitmity analysis on the discount rate I1s based on a change it an assumption while holding all
other assumptions constant The change in RP! inflation assumption impacts on the Consumer Pnces Index
("CP1") assumption, revaluation in deferment and pension increase assumptions When calculating sensitivity
of the defined benefit abligation to sigrificant actuanal assumptions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected umit credit method at the end of tha reporting pertod)
has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the statement of financial position
This 1s consistent with sensitivihes calculated i previcus periods

The Plan i1s exposed to a number of risks, the most signficant of which are detaled below

Asset volatility

The habililes are calculated using a discourit rate set with reference to corporate bond yields If assets
underperform this yield, this will create a deficit The Plan holds a significant proportion of growth assets (e g
equities, property, absolute return fund) which are expected fo outperforn corporate bonds in the long-tarm
whlle providing volatiity and risk in the short-term The allocation to growth assets 1s monitared such that it 1s
suitable with the Plan's long term objectives

Changes i bond yields
A decrease in the corporate bond yields will increase the Plan's habilities, although this will ba partially offset
by an increase in the value of the Plan's band holdings.

Inflation rist

The majonty of the Plan's benefit obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead ta higher
liabiities (although, in mest cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect aganst
exireme inflabion} The majonty of the assets are either unaffected by or loosely correlated with inflation,
meaning that an increase in nflation will also increase the dsficit

Life sxpactancy
The majonty of tha Plan's obhgations are to provide benefits for the ife of the members, so increases n life
expectancy will result in an increase in the liabiles

The Plan uses the buy-+n contract and liability matching assets (which includes swaps and cash funds) as
maiching assels Tha remainder of the assets 1s used as growth assets Funding levels are monitcred on a
quarterly basis and the next tnennial valuation 1s due fo be completed as at 31 May 2017

Thera are no employer contributions expected to be pald to the Plan for the year ending 31 May 2016 The
weighted average duration of the dsfined benefit obligation Is approxumately 16 years
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21 Net cash flow generated from operations

Year Year
ended ended
31 May 31 May
all figures In $ militons 2015 2014
Operating profit 56 3 1252
Amortisation of other infangible assels 2102 2009
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 98 9§
Capitalised developed software written off 33 -
Goodwill impalrment 60.0 -
Differences between pension charge and cash contributions 05 (03)
{Gain)/loss on embedded derivatives {79) 42
Unrealised foreign exchange gains (22 3) (9 9)
Movements in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivabies 104 (57 9)
Decroase in payables and provisions {22 0) (257)
Increase / {decrease) in deferred lncome {6 6) 635
Net cash flow generated from operations 2917 3100

22 Reconciliation of movements in net debt

The Group defines nat debt as borrowings excluding PECs, less cash and cash equivalents and restrcted

cash

Cash and

cash Restricted Bank

all figures in $ millions equivalents cash overdrafts  Bank loans Net debt
Al 31 May 2013 263 24 (53) (1.605 9} (1,562 5)
Acquisitons - IND {41 5} - - (28) (44 3}
Cash flow 655 {(10) 53 {209 &) (t308)
Nan-cash movements - - - (18 3) (18 3)
Differences on exchange 05 - - {7.1) {6 6)
At 31 May 2014 50.8 1.4 - (1,843 7) {1,791.5)
Acquisitions - CCS {24.9) - - - (24 9)
Cash flow 164 (0 5) - 131 290
Non-cash movements - - - {16 8) (16.8)
Differences on exchange (20} - - 490 47 0
At 31 May 2015 40.3 0.9 - {1,798.4) (1,757.2

Restricted cash of 50 Sm (2014 $1 4m) s not available for the general use of the Group

Bank loans are inclusive of capitalised loan arrangement fees of $5 3m (2014, $3 2m) which have been
reclassifiad to other recejvables as descnbed in note 16
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23 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilites that are quantifiable arisa from guaraniees, letters of credit and bonds that have been
1ssued in support of tenders submitted to prospective custemers Thase amount to $1 1m (2014 $0 7m)

A contingent habiity exists in relation to the Group's defined benefit schems (note 20) as a result of the

proposed equabsation of Guaranteed Minmum Pansion ("GMP*) The UK Government intends to implement

legisiation which could result in an increase in the value of GMP for males. This would increase the defined i

benefit obligation of the Plan At this stage it is not possibls to quantify the impact of this change l
|
\

The Company and its subsidianes may be parlies to legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of

business Whilst the outcome of current outstanding actions and claims remalins uncertan, it 1s expected that
they will be resolved without a matenal impact to the Group’s financlal position

24 Commitments

Commutments of the Group under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 May 2015

2015 2014
Land and Plant and Land and Ptant and
2ll figures In § miltlons bulidings ¢quipment buildings squipment
Rental payments due within one year 28.8 0.3 308 02
Renta! payments due between one and five years 77.0 0.2 889 0.2
Rental payments due after five years 43.1 - 497 -
Total 146.7 0.5 169 4 04

Total fulure sublease income under non-cancellabla subleases 1s $4 2m due within one year (2014 $4 ém),
$10 5m due betwesn one and five years (2014 $14 Om) and $4 9m due after 5 years (2014 $7 3m)

25 Related party transactions

Parent and subsidiaries
Transactions belween the Company and its subsidiaries, which are relsted partles, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note

Remurnieration of key management personne!
The kay management personnel of the Group compnse the Managers and certain other senior management
Their remuneration is set out below in aggregate

Year Year

ended ended

31 May 31 May

all figurps in $ millflons 2015 2014
Short-term employment benefits 81 57
Post-employment heneflts 0.1 02
Terminaton benefits - 15
8.2 74

The $1,564 8m (2014. $1,391 6m) PECs balance and associated accruad interast 13 owed to Misys Newco
S a r 1, the iImmediate parent entity of the Group
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Other related partlos
Dunng the year, the Group acquired third party software from SumTotal Systems UK Limited, a company
previously owned, dunng the year, by Vista Equity Partners for a consideration of $0 2m (2014 $0 4m)

The Group acquired services from Tibco Software Inc., a company owned by Vista Equity Partners, for a
consideration of $0 3m (2014 $nil}

As al 31 May 2015, there were no outstanding balances due to SumTotal Systems UK Limited or Tibco
Software Inc

The Group utilised management consulting services from Vista Consulting Group LLC of $1 4m (2014 52 4m)

The Group paid $0 6m of expenses on behalf of Vista Equity Partners (2014 $0 8m) Cumulative debt of
$1 2m was settled via a repayment of accrued interast on Senes E PECs as I1s prescribed under the PEC
agreement There is a remalning receivable balance of $0 2m (2014. $0 8m) from Vista Equity Partners at 31
May 2015 which was not settled

During the year, $0 2m was charged to Aptean Corporation, a company cwned by Vista Equity Pariners, in
respect of payroll recharges As at 31 May 2015, $0.1m was outstanding from Aptean Corporation

26 Financlal Instruments: risk management

The Group operates a centralised treasury function which 15 responsible for managing the liqusdity, intsrest
rate and foreign exchange risks assoclated with the Group's activities under pollcies approved by the Board
As part of its strategy for the management of these rsks, the Group usas derivative financial instruments In
accordanca with the Group's treasury policy, derivabiva instruments are not entered into for speculative
purposes. Treasury policy 18 reviewed and approved by the Board and spacifies the parameters within which
treasury operations must be conducted, including authonsed counterparties, instrument types, transaction
imits and principles governing the management of iquidity, interest rate and foreign exchangs risks

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than dernvatives, are cash, short term deposis, bank loans,
PECs, trade and other receivables and irade and other payables The main puspese of thesa financial
Instruments 1s lo ratse finance for the Group's operations

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and 1s exposed to forelgn exchange risk ansing from vanous currency
exposures Foregn exchange risk arises from fulure commercial transactions, recognlsed assets and liabilities
and net mvestments in farelgn operations The Group reviews the non-US Dollar net cash flow exposure of the
Group and hedges forecast exposuras which exceed the limit specified by management using external forward
contracts

The Group's nat exposure to forelgn currency nsk is illustrated by the sensitvily analysis in note 29

Interest rate nsk

Thé Group 15 exposed to cash flow Interest rate nsk on floating rate loans, overdrafis and cash held on
deposit The Group's borrowings are a mix of floating and fixed rates with variable interest rates set for penods
of three months or less The Group's vanable rate tarm loan debt references LIBOR, with a specified floor of
1% Based on vanous scenanos, tha Group manages its cash flow interast rate nsk using interest rate hedging
instruments such as caps or swaps As at 31 May 2015 the Group held no interest rate hedging instruments
(2014 none)

The Group's net exposure to interest rate nsk 1s dlustrated by the sensitvity analysls in note 29
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Credit risk

Credit nsk anses from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and depesits with banks and
financial institutions but pnmanly from outstanding trade recevables and committed transactions The Group
has polictes In place to snsure that sales are made to customers with an appropnate credit history

Denvative and cash transactions are lmited to high-quahty financial Institutions The Group has policies that
hmit the amount of credit exposure 10 any financial institution. For customer contracts, the Group and each
reporting subsidary have specified nisk contrel and authonsation procedures in place to assess the credit
guality of a custormer Where there 1s no independent risk rating for a customer, such an assessment takes into
account financtal posifion, past expenance and other factors

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk, with exposures spread over g large number of
customers and counterpartias

Ligquidity nsk

The Group manages ts cash and borrowing requiremeants centrally o minimise net interast expense within nisk
parameters set by the Board, whilst ensuring that the Group has sufficient hquid resources to meet the
operating needs of the business The long term forecast cash and borrewings profile of the Group is monitored
te ensure that adequate headroom remains under current and projected borrowing facilities

The table below shows the matunty analysis of the undiscounted remaining contractual cash flows of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilibes,

Less than 1to 2 2to5 Over 5 2015
gll figures In $ millions 1 year yoars years years Total
Borrawings 150 8 1502 2,0628 - 2,353.6
Trade and cther payablas 155.9 - - - 155.9
Total cash flows - 2015 308.7 150.2  2,052.6 - 2,509.5

Less than 1t02 2108 OQOvers 2014
all figures in § millions 1 year yaars years vyears Total
Borrowings 1579 1820 22732 - 26131
Trade and other payablas 1856 22 62 14 1954
Other Kabihties 106 - 02 02 110
Total cash flows - 2014 354 1 1842 22796 16 28195

The Group has also 1ssued PECs with a maturity of 49 years as outlined in Note 17 At the reporting date, the
PECs have 46 years outstanding to matunty The PECs have not been taken into account in the above
matunty analysis of undiscounted contractual cash flows The tofal Iimpact for the PECs in 46 years on an
undiscounted contractual cash flow basis 15 $377,251 9m following the $1 2m repayment of PEC nterest
dunng the year (2014 $377,663 1m)

The table below analyses the Group's outifow and inflow from derivative financial instruments nto relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining contractual maturidy penod at the reporting date The amounts
disclosed in the tabla are the contractual undiscounted gross cash flows

54




Misys Newco 2 S.ar.l.
Notes to the consolidated financlal statements for the year ended 31 May 2015

Less than 1to 2 2to5 Over5 2015
alt figures in $ milions 1 year years years years Total
Dervative financial instruments (gross settled)

- inflows 267 4 1054 19 22 3769

- putflows (253 0) {101.6) (0.5) (0.2) {355.3)

Net cash Rows - 2015 14.4 3.8 1.4 2.0 21,6
Less than 1t02 2to5 Overb 2014

all igures In § millons 1 year yaars yearg Years Total

Dernvative financial instruments (gross

settied)

- Inflows 370 1 816 07 - 452.4

- outflows (3727) (82 B) 2.7} - {458 0)

Neat cash flows - 2014 {2.6) (10} (2.0) - (56

Netting arrangements of denvative financial instruments

The gross falr value of derivative financial instruments as presented in the Group consolidated statement of
financial position, together with the Group's rights to offset associaled with recognised financial assels and
recogrused financial habilitles subject 10 enforceable master netting arrangements and slmilar agreements Is
summarised as follows:

May May
2015 2014
Consolidated statement of financial Consolidated statement of financial
position posifion
Gross Amount Net Gross Amount Net
all fgures in § milllons amount presented amount amount  presenled amount
Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments 208 208 169 36 36 17
Financial liabilities
Denvative financial instruments {4 0) {4.0) (0.1} {5 9) {(59) (4 0)
1648 16.9 16 8 (2 3} {2 3) (23)

Nat amounts show the effect If all amounts were netted off for each individual counter parly

Capttal nsk

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debf, PECs {note 17) and equity attnbutable to equity holders
of the Company, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings as shown In the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 14. The Group manages s capitalt with the objective that all entities
wilhin the Group confinue as a going concern while mamntalning an efficient structure to mimmise the cost of
captal

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capdal to shareholdars, 1ssue new shares or sell assets lo reduce debt

The Group s subject to certan financial covenants under ils loan facllites These specify a maximum ratio of
net debt to operating profit, before depreciation, amortisaton and exceptiona! tems, deducting capitalsed
research and development costs This covenant has not been breached during the year

27 Financial instruments. categories

Falr value measurement hierarchy

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (where relevant) are classified using the following fair value
hierarchy which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements
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= Quotsd prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or llabilities {Laval 1},
e Input other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observabls for the asset or hability, either
directly {1 e as pnces) or indiractly (+ @ denved from prices) (Level 2), and

= Inputs for the asset or habtiity that are not based on observable markat data (unobservable inputs) (Level
3}

Fair vaiue Non-

Fair value  through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
al) figuros n § millions hiararchy' P&L receivahles cost instrument’ Current current
At 31 May 2015
Financial assets
Investmenis Lgvet 2 25 - - - - 2.5
Denvative financial
mstruments Lavel 2 26.7 - - - 1858 82
Trade and other receivables - 3458 - 21.7 3343 33.2
Resincted cash - 09 . - a9 -
Cash and cash eguivalents - 40 3 - - 403 -

29,2 3870 - 217 3940 439
Financial habihties
Denvative financial
instruments Lavel 2 51) - - - (40) {(1.1)
Borrowings and PECs - - (3,368 5) - - J68.5
Trade and other payables - - {167 9) {23.5) {182.6) (8.8)
(5 1} - (3,638.4) {23 8) {186.8) (3,378.4)
Farr value Non-

Fair value through Loans & Amortised financial Non-
sil figures 1n § millions hierarchy’ P&L receivables cost  instrument® Current  current
At 31 May 2014
Financia! assets
lnvestments Level 2 28 - - - - 28
Denvative financial
insiruments Level 2 49 - - - a5 14
Trade and other raceivables - 3729 - 262 3758 233
Restricted cash - 14 - - 14 -
Cash and cash squivalents - 50.8 - - 508 -

77 4251 - 262 4315 275
Financkal iabiites
Denwvative financial
nstruments Level 2 {10 5) - ~ - (62) {43)
Borrowings - - {3,238 5) - - (3,238 5)
Trade and other payables - - {206.3) (19 5) (213.8) {12.0)
(10 5} - {3,444.8) (195} (2200) {3,254 8)

Falr valuc hierarchy shows tha folr velue maasurement categories as descnbed balow.

*Assets that do not quallfy as a financlal Instrument includs prepayments of $21 7m (2014 $26 2m) Labiities that do not quality as
financial Insttuments are tax and other social securlty payments of $23.5m (2014 $19 5m)

a) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets 1s based on quoted market prices at the close of
business on the reporting date A market s regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regulardy
avallable from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pncing service or reguiatory agency and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurnng market transactions on an arm's length basis The quoted
market pnce used for financial assets held by the Group 15 the current bid price These instruments are
included 1n level 1 and comprise investments in quoted marketable secuntes
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b) Financial instruments in lovel 2

The fair value of financial instruments that ara not raded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) 18 determined by using valuatton fechniques The valuation techniques maxinmise the use of
observabla market data where 1t (s available and rely as litlle as possible on entity specific estmates i all
significant tnputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Forward exchange rates valuation tachnique was used to vaiue financial instruments.

Financial assets

Cash and cash squivalents primanly compnse cash deposits and investments Cash which bears interest at
nominal rates comprises $16.1m (2014 $26 3m) in US Dollar, $3 Om (2014 $1 6m) denominated in Pound
Stering, $30m (2014 $32m} n Euro and $18 2m (2014 $14 7m) in other currencies Resincted cash
comprises $0.9m (2014 $0 8m) denominated (n US Doilar and $nil (2014 $0 6m) in other currencies

Forward foreign exchange confracts
The fair value of forelgn exchange derivatives was a net asset of $16 8m (2014 labiliy of $2 2m)

28. Financlal instruments: fair values

The fair values of each category of the Group's financial instruments are approximate to their carrying vaiues .

in the Group's statement of financial position as the impact of discounting 15 not significant

29, Financial instruments’ sensitivity analysis

Forsaign currency sensiivily analysis

The Group's princtpal foreign currency exposurss are to Pound Sterling, the Euro and Indian Rupee The table
below iliustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group’s reperted profit and equity for every 10% increase
and decraase, in relation to the US Dollar, in the Euro, Pound Sterling and Indian Rupee exchange rates at the
reporting date, assuming all other variables remain unchanged. The sensitivity rate of 10% represents the
Managers’ assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable future.

Outstanding forward contracts used to hedge the non-US Dollar net cash flow exposure of the Group as
descrbed in note 26 are included in this analysis. Itis anhicipated that on matunty of the hedges an underlying
future anticipated cash flow exposure wil! crystalise and offset any gam or loss

Positve figures represent an increase in operating profit

Conzolidated income statement

all figures in § milllons 2015 2014
US Dollar strengthens by 10%

Euro (13.0) (12 8)
Pound Sterling (20) (53)
Indian Rupee 48 41

US Dollar weakens by 10%

Euro 130 15.3
Pound Stering 20 60

Indian Rupea (4.8) {5.0)

Year average exchange rates applied in the above analysis are Euro 1.22, Pound Steriing 1 59 and Indian
Rupee 0 02 (2014 Euro 1 37, Pound Sterhng 1 67 and Indian Rupes 0 02)
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group's variable rate debt references LIBOR with a floor of 1% The Group is exposed o increases in
mnterest rates beyond this floor The table below illustrates the hypothetical sensitivity of the Group’s reporied
profit to a 0 5% increase in interest rates beyond the 1%, assuming all other vanables remain unchanged The
sensitivity of 0 5% represents the Managers' assessment of a reasonably possible change for the foreseeable
future

Consolldatad income statement
all figures in § milions 2015 2014
Interest rate increase of 0 5% {(67) (9 6)
Interest rate decrease of 0 5% 67 8

30 Principal subsidiary undertakings

The Company Is the beneficial owner and has 100% of the nominal value and voting nights over all the equity
share capital, through substdiary undertakings, of the following princtpal operating subsidiary undertakings

These develop and license application software products to customers in well-defined vertical markets
together with undertaking transaction progessing, professional services and e-commerce actvities

Company name Country of incorporation Markets servad
and operation

Misys Intemational Banking Systems GmbH  Germany Ali of these subsidiaries offer Global products
Misys International Banking Systems Inc USA and services in the following areas

- Retall and international branch banking
Misys Intemational Banking Systems Limited England and Wales

. Transaction banking
Misys Internationat Banking Systems Pty Austraha
Limited

. Treasury and capital markets
Misys International Banking Systems Limited Hong Kong

. Entarpnse-wide market and credst nsk
Misys Internatiopal Financial Systems Pte Singapore management
Limited
. Software integrabon technoiogy
Misys France SAS Francae - -
Misys Europe SA Luxembourg
Misys International Financial Systems China
Technology (Beljing) LImited Portfolio and risk management services in
the following areas
Misys lrefand Limited Republic of treland . Investment banks
. Treasury and capital markets
Misys ltaly S r | Italy . Fund rnanagement
. Pansion funds
Misys Global Linmted England and Wales

31 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking 15 Misys Newco Sa rl This company files consolidated financial
statements in Luxembourg

The party which controls the Company s Vista Equity Partniers based in USA,
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32. Parent undertaking guarantee

Certain UK and German subsidianes In the Group have elected to make use of the audit exemption, for non-
dormant subsidianies, under seclion 478A of the UK Companles Act and by wirtua of section 264(3) HGB of the
German Commercial Code as relevant. The German subsidiary listed below has also slected to make use of
the exemption to publish its financial statements in the elactronic federal gazette In order to fulfil the
conditions set cut in the ragulatons, the Company has given a statutory guarantee of all outstanding liabilibes
to which the subsidiaries are subjeci at the end of the financial year to 31 May 2015 The compan:es which
have made use of the audit exemption as follows-

Company namae Company Number Registered office

Kapiti Limited 1841697 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
MiBS Heldings Limited B74912 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Africa Limited 3079792 Ona Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Global bimited 7830889 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Group Holdings Limited 3379662 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 6B8L, UK
Misys international Banking

Systems (CIS) Limited 3259295 One Kingdom Straet, London, W2 86BL, UK
Misys Holdings Limited 1752099 One Kingdom Strest, London, W2 6BL, UK
Misys Services Limited 1941076 One Kingdom Streel, London, W2 6BL, UK
Summit Asla Limited 2698761 One Kingdom Street, London, W2 68L, UK
MIBS Germany GmbH HRB36797 N Hedderichstrasse 36, 60594 Frankfurt, Germany

33. Events after the reporting date

As at the dale of approval of the consolidated financial statements no significant or materlal events affecting
the Group have been entfied
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